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Chairman’s Statement
TERE

2015 was a remarkable year for us. We made a move to one
of the most recognised capital markets in the world. The
shares of In Construction Holdings Limited were listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 16 April 2015.
The listing provided additional funding capital to improve
our financial position, strengthened our transparency for
negotiating banking facilities and enhanced our capacities to
undertake sizeable construction projects.

Our financial performances these last few years have
continued to steadily grow. This financial year, our net profit
reached HK$92.1 million, with a turnover of HK$497.3
million. Our financial position has further improved. We
reduced our trade creditors substantially to HK$67.0 million,
and managed to retain over HK$229.6 million cash. Due
to the results detailed above, which were satisfactory
overall, our board decided to recommend a final dividend of
HK$0.034 per share in accordance with our dividend policy.

Our Group, founded in 1996, is an experienced general
and foundation contractor serving the Hong Kong building
and construction industries by offering quality and flexible
solutions to our customers. Over the years, our client base
has expanded through word of mouth, with most of them
being repeat customers. Using our ability to solve different
complex issues on various projects, we have built trust and
credibility with our customers. We definitely could not have
done it without the support of our working partners, who
have been working with us job by job over the years. The
implementation of our self-developed, successful formula in
project management, together with our strong bond with our
customers and working partners, has enabled us to withstand
every predicament in the last two decades.

In recent years in Hong Kong, a strong demand for more
housing and the commencement of ten major infrastructure
projects by government have seen a blossom in the
construction industry. Some contractors, including us, have
seized the moment for expansion. However, filibustering
of the legislative council in Hong Kong has turned feast to
famine for most construction companies. The prolonged
dispute in the legislative council has postponed government
funding and, as a result, some large infrastructure projects
have been suspended. Some public sector contractors
have diverted to the private sector in order to avoid idling
resources, which resulted in keener competition than usual.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE (B)

We experienced steep competition among contractors in
tendering for new projects, even though we started tendering
with low margin in last few months. It has been almost one
year since we were awarded a new contract in August 2015.
Our peers are competing more and more aggressively to
secure the relatively few new contracts that come to market.

The situation seems pessimistic, and we remain vigilant to
the potential further deterioration caused by these changes.
However, we are well-positioned in the market as our
operation model of subcontracting works allows us flexibility
and strengthens our resilience toward any adverse impact.
We also foresee uncertainties in metal price, economic
atmosphere and political climate, therefore we are prepared
to wait out the storm, preserve our resources and potentially
seize opportunities in the future.

Looking ahead, we will continue to adhere to our strategy of
focusing on ‘design and build" projects and are committed
to expanding our operation scale. Our management team
is convinced that we will continue to build value over the
medium to long term for our shareholders. Last but not least,
I, on behalf of our board, would like to express our sincere
gratitude to our management and all our staff for their hard
work and dedication, as well as our shareholders, business
associates and other professional parties for their support
throughout the year.

Lau Pak Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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Highlights
i

HK$'m 497 .3 g&nx

Up HK$110.6m from FY14/15
B2/ —AEMBEERMNI06HE%E
JT

HK$'m 92.1s8%x
Up HK$19.4m from FY14/15
BN/ —EUBEEEMI1948E
BT

REVENUE Wz

nks0.112x5

HK$0.114 in FY14/15
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NET PROFIT ;Z X34

Hks0.034 =

HK$0.03 in FY14/15
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EARNINGS PER SHARE S8R &%

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN FY 2015/2016
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26.3%

FINAL DIVIDEND KR EIfZ 2

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN FY 2014/2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER R DT

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is engaged as a contractor in the foundation
industry in Hong Kong, undertaking foundation works as
well as associated works including demolition works, site
formation works, ground investigation field works and
general building works for local customers.

Business Review

The Group was engaged to undertake foundation and
associated works in the private sector construction projects in
Hong Kong, with an emphasis on design and build projects
and on undertaking the role as a main contractor.

The Group places emphasis on design and build projects
because of the flexibility and capability in coming up
with foundation design plan that suits its customers’
requirements and the site conditions. During the year
ended 31 March 2016 (the “Financial Year 2015/16"), the
Group has successfully carried out construction works with
alternative design which not only complies with the technical
requirements but also be more cost efficient for “design and
build” contracts. The cost efficient proposals allow the Group
to offer its customers more competitive pricing and at the
same time secure its profit margin for the year.

During the Financial Year 2015/16, two foundation projects
with an aggregate contract sum of HK$151.3 million were
awarded to the Group. Four foundation projects were
completed and one project — Hing Hon Road was settled.
As at 31 March 2016, six foundation projects with the
outstanding contract sum of HK$431.4 million were in
progress.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRR D (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Business Review (continued)

Year of award/project

& 3R B R ()

R ()

Type of contract

Status as at
31 March 2016
R=B—RF

ERFE 1EA arEn ZA=+—HHRR
Year 2013-2014

—E— R _FFE

Queen’s Road Central and Stanley Street, Central Build only Completed
HIREFABHR R [E3eSe [

Heung Yip Road, Aberdeen Design and build Completed
BETEEE Rt K& BT

Peel Street/Graham Street, Central Design and build Work in progress
HIRBFIE, RS Rt KiE 2

Hing Hon Road, Pok Fu Lam Build only Completed
SERAMEEE [E3=5t BT

Year 2014-2015

—E-E—F—AFE

Aberdeen Street, Central Design and build Completed
FPIRIEE A Rt K& BT

Perkins Road, Happy Valley Design and build Work in progress
55 B 2R B Rt RiE 22

A Kung Ngam Road, Shau Kei Wan Design and build Work in progress
R {OVN= Rt M EsE 2

Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai Build only Completed

B E2RREBR ES=i Bl

Fuk Chak Street and Ka Shin Street, Tai Kok Tsui Design and build Work in progress
RAEERET RSN Rt K& 2

Year 2015-2016
—E—AR T NFE
Queen’s Road Central, Central
FIREFKEF

King's Road, Quarry Bay
fleoRRes

Design and build
Rt K&
Design and build
JEt RiE

Work in progress
2
Work in progress

e



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRRS N (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(continued)
Recent Development

Two foundation projects in Perkins Road, Happy Valley
and Peel Street/Graham Street, Central were completed
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

Financial Review

During the Financial Year 2015/16, revenue increased by
HK$110.6 million or 28.6% to HK$497.3 million, from
the last financial year of HK$386.7 million. 18 projects
contributed revenue for the year (2015: 21 projects). Top
five projects contributed revenue amounted to HK$352.3
million (2015: HK$264.0 million), in which the top project
contributed 29.9% of the total revenue.

Last financial year, final payments of several completed
projects were certified, with additional contract sums agreed
and granted to the Group, which contributed additional
revenue and gross profit to the Group. During the Financial
Year 2015/16, the decrease in additional revenue arising
from the final payments led to a decrease in gross profit
margin from 29.5% to 26.3%. However, with the increase in
revenue generated by the top five projects, overall gross profit
increased by 14.6%.

In addition, other income increased by HK$6.8 million or
400.6% due to rental income from machinery. As a result, net
profit for the Financial Year 2015/16 increased by HK$19.4
million or 26.7% to HK$92.1 million, from the last financial
year of HK$72.7 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRES T (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Highly regulated industry

The foundation industry is a highly regulated industry and
the Group is required to maintain certain registrations under
the laws of Hong Kong. In order to renew and maintain
these registrations, the Group is required to comply with
certain criteria set by the relevant governmental departments
and authorities such as the Buildings Department and the
Development Bureau. These include the maintenance of
certain financial criteria such as working capital level, the
adequacy of our management structure and the appropriate
experience and qualification of our personnel.

Any suspension of or a failure to maintain or renew the
Group's registrations could materially and adversely affect the
Group's business.

Uncertainty in construction progress

Due to the nature of foundation works, the foundation
and structure of any buildings adjacent to the Group’s
construction sites may be affected or damaged during the
construction process.

The Group may incur additional cost and time in carrying
out remedial works and this may cause material delay in
completing the project. The Group may face claims from
customers for losses and for liquidated damages due to
delay. Further, the Group may also be exposed to claims and
disputes from third parties arising from damage caused to the
adjacent buildings. Such claims, legal and other proceedings
may affect the Group’s reputation and also increase the costs
of the projects undertaken by the Group, resulting in adverse
impact on the financial performance of the Group.

Failure to bid new contract

The Group’s business relies on successful tenders that
determine the award of contracts for foundation works and/
or associated works. Given the non-recurring nature of these
contract awards and the Group does not have long-term
commitment with its customers, the number of contracts
awarded to the Group may vary from year to year.

Upon the completion of its contracts on hand, the Group's
financial performance may be adversely affected if the Group
is unable to secure new tenders or obtain new contract
awards with comparable contract sums or at all.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEN®R D (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Uncertain external factors

Despite the construction industry is one of the traditional core
industries in Hong Kong and it is currently benefitting from
strong housing needs and government large infrastructure
projects, the construction industry may suffer adverse impact
in the event of any change in government policies, sudden
economic setback and unanticipated natural disasters. Since
our customers are mostly private sector property developers,
the future growth and profitability of the foundation industry
largely depends on the continued prosperity of the property
market and the construction industry in Hong Kong.

Although the Group has a number of contracts on hand,
these external factors may affect the number of new
construction projects available in the private sector in medium
to long term.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRR D (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Relationships with Customers, Working

Partners and Employees

The Group maintains long-term relationship with its
customers and working partners (including subcontractors,
suppliers and consultants), some of which have established
more than 10 years of working relationship with the Group.
The close working relationship can also be demonstrated by
the increasing number of customer portfolios and continuous
cooperation with working partners which may be engaged
by the Group in one or more of its projects at the same
time. Building successful long-term relationships with them
is a key element of the Group’s business model, which is
closely interlinked with all the other elements of its model.
Successful long-term relationships are built on trust — a trust
that the Group is able to provide quality service and excellent
customer experience. To achieve this, the Group needs
experienced people with the right skills and capabilities as
well as continuous supports from its working partners.

The Group also maintains a very stable and experienced
management team and an amicable long-term relationship
with its employees. The Group has a low staff turnover rate
of 1.8% in 2016 (2015: 3.7%) and many of the Group's
skilled employees have worked with the Group for a number
of years. The Group's key management team comprises
three executive Directors and the Financial Controller, the
biography of each is set out under the section headed
"Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this
report. The Group's experienced management team, coupled
with a stable pool of skilled labour, is one of its key drives in
delivering high quality work to customers in order to attain
high customers’ satisfaction.

Environmental Policies

The Group places an emphasis on environmental protection
when undertaking its projects. The Group was awarded
the I1ISO 14001:2004 (environment management system
accreditation). The current ISO 14001:2004 certificate is
valid from 3 September 2014 until 3 September 2017. When
preparing the tender documents, the Group will take into
consideration the environmental protection requirements
of potential customers as well as the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection. The
Group's safety officers are responsible for ensuring that
the Group satisfies the applicable laws and regulations
requirements and identifying and reporting on environmental
issues to our project management team.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE D (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
(continued)
Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulation

The Group mainly undertakes foundation works and
associated works for construction projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and is thus subject to the rules and
regulations implemented by the Buildings Department which
regulates contractors in the private sector. The Directors
confirmed that during the Financial Year 2015/2016 and
up to the date of this report, the Group had obtained all
the registrations and certifications required for its business
and operations in Hong Kong, and had complied with the
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong in all material
respects.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

)

ME )
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EB LB EEMEEE - XN
FREEXRTEETEBERERIER -

RBES  UBERREARR
B

As at 31 March

R=A=1+—8H
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HF
Current ratio L= 3.9 22
Gearing ratio’ BEBEHLET 5.9% 14.1%
Note: FieE
1. Gearing ratio is calculated based on debts including payables incurred 1. BEABHRIZEE(BIEYIEE—RESKSB

not in the ordinary course of business divided by the total equity as at

the reporting dates.

Current ratio increased from 2.2 times as at 31 March 2015
to 3.9 times as at 31 March 2016, mainly due to increase in
cash and bank balances. Gearing ratio decreased from 14.1%
as at 31 March 2015 to 5.9% as at 31 March 2016, due to
net addition in equity after including, net proceeds from the
listing of the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16 April
2015 (the “Listing”), net profit for the Financial Year 2015/16
and dividend paid.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRES T (&)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had cash and bank balances
of HK$229.6 million (2015: HK$70.2 million), of which
HK$47.3 million (2015: HK$70.0 million) were restricted bank
balances. Such restricted bank balances were held for the
purpose of the issuance of surety bonds for our projects. As
at 31 March 2016, the Group had no bank overdrafts (2015:
HK$5.0 million).

The capital structure of the Group consisted of equity
of HK$331.3 million and debts of HK$19.6 million as at
31 March 2016. Particulars of the bank loans and other
borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2016 are set out in
notes 19 and 20 to the financial statements.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in cash management.
Apart from certain debts including obligations under finance
leases, bank loan and loans from shareholders, the Group
did not have any material outstanding debts as at 31 March
2016. Payment to settle trade payable represented the
significant part of the cash outflow of the Group. Taking into
account the light debt leverage and the net proceeds from
the Listing, the Group is able to generate cash and meet
upcoming cash requirements. In any case, the Group may
utilise its banking facilities of HK$160.0 million, of which the
unutilised and unrestricted banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$131.2 million.

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 54 full-time employees as at 31 March 2016
(2015: 55). The Group offers competitive remuneration
package that is based on overall market rates and employee
performance, as well as the performance of the Group.
Remuneration package is comprised of salary, a performance-
based bonus, and other benefits including training and
provident funds.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements, the
Group had no other capital commitments as at 31 March
2016.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the
Group had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE D (&)

CHARGE OVER ASSETS

Save as disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, as
at 31 March 2016, the Group had restricted bank balances
which were charged to banks to secure bank facilities granted
to the Group and the issuance of performance bonds. The
Group also had certain construction machinery pledged to
secure a bank loan. As at 31 March 2016, the net book
value of the machinery pledged to secure a bank loan was
HK$6,834,000 (2015: HK$nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES, AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There were no significant investments held, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the year ended 31 March 2016. There is no
other plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31
March 2016.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing will be utilised subsequent
to the Listing in accordance with the proposed applications
set out in the section “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
of the prospectus of the Company dated 31 March 2015
(the "Prospectus”) and the announcement of the Company
dated 7 August 2015. The below table sets out the proposed
applications of the net proceeds and usage up to 31 March
2016:
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Taking into account the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region’s policy in increasing land
supply and proposing several large infrastructure projects,
the Group expects an optimistic growth in the construction
industry. Despite the vigorous competition in Hong Kong
construction industry, the Board is optimistic that the
Group can maintain steady growth in net profit and scale
of operations due to its long established reputation and
proven ability. To maintain its competitive edge, the Group
continues to adhere to its business strategy, by expanding our
capacity to capture more business opportunities, reinforcing
our capability in foundation design and project management
skills and offering qualitative and flexible solution to our
customers.

The Listing marked an important milestone in the history
of the Group and opened up brand-new opportunities for
the Group’s development in the future. Looking forward,
the Group will continue its expansion by purchasing new
equipments and recruiting middle and top level staff. The
Group also welcomes any proposals if they meet the Group's
strategic position and development.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSNEEANERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Pak Man(Z|{832), aged 61, is our Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, executive Director and General Manager of
the Group. Mr. Lau, together with Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong,
are the founders of the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible for
overall strategic development, project management and
client management of the Group. Mr. Lau is also a director of
In Construction Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, since 20 December 1996. Mr. Lau obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from the
University of Leeds in July 1979. Mr. Lau has nearly 25 years
of extensive experience in the construction industry in Hong
Kong since 1991. Prior to founding In Construction Limited
in December 1996, Mr. Lau was the project manager and
contract manager of Fong On Construction & Engineering Co
Ltd between January 1991 till December 1994 and January
1995 till December 1996, respectively, mainly responsible for
H-piling foundations, supply and installations projects as well
as a construction and redevelopment project. Mr. Lau has
been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since July 1992, a chartered engineer of the Institution of Civil
Engineers, London, England since November 1984, a member
of the Institution of Civil Engineers since December 1983,
a member of the Institute of Highways and Transportation,
London, England since March 1983 and a registered
professional engineer (civil) of Engineers Registration Board.
Mr. Lau is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit.

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong(B8% &), aged 61, is our executive
Director and the Director — Construction of the Group. Mr.
Cheng is a founder of the Group and is responsible for
overseeing the tender process including foundation design
and project budget, as well as quality control of our projects.
Mr. Cheng has acted as a director of In Construction Limited
since 20 December 1996. Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Engineering from the University of Hong
Kong in October 1977. In the course of his career, Mr. Cheng
has accumulated more than 20 years of comprehensive
experience in the construction industry. Between May 1989
and August 1992, Mr. Cheng worked in China Overseas
Foundation Engineering Limited as a director and deputy
general manager.
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Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit (E852\) , aged 44, is our executive
Director and the Director — Operations of the Group.
Ms. Kwan is responsible for project management and
coordination, as well as daily operations of the Group. Ms.
Kwan has been appointed a director of In Construction
Limited since 1 December 2014. Ms. Kwan obtained a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Management
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
November 1994. Ms. Kwan has accumulated over 20 years
of experience in the construction industry. She joined In
Construction Limited as an assistant manager in April 1997.
Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Kwan worked at Sam Woo
Engineering Equipment Limited from February 1995 to April
1997. During her employment there, she has worked as an
assistant manager. Ms. Kwan is the spouse of Mr. Lau Pak
Man.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Chi Kin (R#E), aged 62, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed by the Company on
26 March 2015. Mr. Leung obtained a high diploma in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic) in November
1976. In the course of his career, Mr. Leung has accumulated
over 39 years of working experience in auditing, accounting,
taxation and financial management. Mr. Leung is currently a
practicing Certified Public Accountant and managing director
of Chang Leung Hui & Li C.P.A. Limited. He is also a Certified
Tax Adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong for the
year 2016. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Between
June 1976 and November 1980, Mr. Leung worked in Lowe
Bingham & Matthews Price Waterhouse & Co., and then
started his own accounting practice in January 1981 and has
been in public practice up to now.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis(# &%), aged 68, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed by the Company on 26
March 2015. Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
in November 1969, after that he obtained a degree of
Doctor of Philosophy from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1972. Mr. Lam has over 15 years of experience
in engineering. Mr. Lam is currently the managing director
and founder of LR Construction Technologies Ltd. since
August 2012, the managing director and co-founder of
LR Construction and Consultancy Ltd. since April 2012,
and the managing director and co-founder of Alternative
Turbine Technologies Ltd. since June 2009. From November
1996 to August 2004, Mr. Lam was a principal lecturer of
the Vocational Training Council. From 1976 to 1977, and
from 1986 to 1987, Mr. Lam was an appointed lecturer in
the Department of Civil and Structural Engineering of the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has been a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers since November 1975
and is also a registered professional engineer of Engineers
Registration Board.

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi
Meng) (EF#), aged 53, is an independent non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 26 March 2015.
Mr. Yau is qualified as a Barrister-at-law in Hong Kong
since March 2011. Mr. Yau obtained a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electronic and Electrical Engineering from
Loughborough University of Technology, England in July
1987. He subsequently obtained a Juris Doctor in Laws and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City University of
Hong Kong in November 2008 and July 2010, respectively.
Mr. Yau has over 19 years of experience in electric power
engineering. Mr. Yau worked in CLP Power Hong Kong
Limited between January 1991 and April 2010, during which
Mr. Yau undertook various positions, with his last position
being a senior project engineer at CLP Engineering Limited, a
subsidiary of CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, in April 2010.

Mr. Yau has been a member of the Institution of Engineering
and Technology, England (formerly known as the Institution
of Electrical Engineers, England) and a chartered electrical
engineer of the Engineering Council, England since 2000. He
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since 2001 and a member of the Chartered Institution of
Building Services Engineers, England since 2004. Mr. Yau has
also been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators
since 2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER AND COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chow Chun To (8#&3%), aged 33, joined us as the
Financial Controller of the Group since 11 September 2014.
Mr. Chow was appointed as our company secretary on 28
October 2014. Mr. Chow is responsible for the accounting
and financial functions, internal control as well as the
company secretarial affairs of the Group. Mr. Chow obtained
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006. Mr. Chow
has over eight years of accounting and audit experience and
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 8 July 2013. Prior to joining our
Group, he was the financial controller of JC Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8326) from May 2013 to September
2014. Between May 2011 and May 2013, Mr. Chow was the
financial manager of Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Chiho-Tiande Group Limited (stock code:
976). From February 2008 to April 2011, Mr. Chow was
employed at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu with his last position
being senior auditor.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Board presents this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in foundation works
as well as associated works including demolition works,
site formation works, ground investigation field works and
general building works. The activities and particulars of the
Company'’s subsidiaries are shown under note 12 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 47 of
this report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposes to recommend, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Monday, 12 September 2016 (the “2016 AGM"), a final
dividend of HK$0.034 per ordinary share of the Company for
the Financial Year 2015/16 (2014/15: HK$0.03 per ordinary
share). It is expected that the proposed final dividend, if
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the 2016
AGM, will be payable on or about 30 September 2016 to
the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Monday, 19
September 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the
2016 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Thursday, 8 September 2016 to Monday, 12
September 2016, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
Shareholders of the Company are reminded to ensure that all
completed share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 7 September
2016.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(continued)

In order to establish entitlements to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed on Monday, 19 September 2016, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
Shareholders of the Company are reminded to ensure that all
completed share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 15 September
2016.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 March 2016.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Except for the matters disclosed under the “Recent
Development” section, the Board is not aware of any
significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 March 2016 and up to the date of this
report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements in this report
and the Prospectus, is set out on page 108. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements in this report.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of shares issued in the Financial Year 2015/16 are set
out in note 21(c) to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Financial
Year 2015/16.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$170,786,000.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”), or the law of
Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the Company
is incorporated.

DIRECTORS
(a) Directors of the Company

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2016
and up to the date of this report, are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Pak Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Leung Chi Kin

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi Meng)

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation at every annual general meeting of the
Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit
Sum Kit shall retire from office by rotation at the 2016
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the said meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.

(b)

Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr.
Lau Pak Man, Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan
Kit Sum, Kit are also directors in certain subsidiaries of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company and each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter
with the Company. The appointment of each of the Directors
is for a period of three years and shall continue thereafter
until being terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provide that every Director shall be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against liabilities
(to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance (Cap
622)) incurred by him as such Director in the execution of his
duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any such director.
The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which
may be brought against the Directors of the Company.

DIRECTORS’" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

Apart from the contracts relating to the reorganisation in
relation to the Listing, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its parent
company was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or during the financial year ended 31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

Save for Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong'’s interest in Longo Piling
Company, details of which were set out in the section
headed “Relationships with Controlling Shareholders” of
the Prospectus, none of the Directors nor the controlling
shareholders of the Company nor their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
that competed or might compete with the business of the
Group in the Financial Year 2015/16.

Mr. Lau Pak Man, Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit, In Play Limited and
Kinetic Kingdom Limited, being the controlling shareholders
of the Company declared that they have complied with the
undertakings given under the Deed of Non-competition as
disclosed in the Prospectus. Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong, Longo
Piling Company and Wealth Celebration Limited declared
that they have complied with the undertakings given under
the Longo Deed of Non-competition as disclosed in the
Prospectus.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors were delegated
with the authority to review, on an annual basis, the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition and the Longo
Deed of Non-competition. The Independent Non-Executive
Directors were not aware of any non-compliance of both
Deeds of Non-competition since the respective dates of the
deeds and up to the date of this report.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” of this report.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which (a) were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares:

Capacity/
Name of Director Nature of Interest
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Approximate

percentage

of the

issued share

capital of the

Company

Number VAN
of shares S2RITRA

Mr. Lau Pak Man
BMax et EnEEA

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong
BB S

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit
R L

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

RHEE BABESH
Beneficial owner 3,020,000 0.36%
Interest in a controlled corporation (Nete ) 270,000,000 32.53%
R4 2 B MOl ()
Interest of spouse MNote? 60,000,000 7.23%
BriB e M=)
Total 330,020,000 40.12%
At
Beneficial owner 4,780,000 0.58%
BEmAA
Interest in a controlled corporation Mete3 270,000,000 32.53%
BRI D RS )
Total 274,780,000 33.11%
At
Interest in a controlled corporation Mote4 60,000,000 7.23%
RSB D RS
Interest of spouse (Netes) 273,020,000 32.89%
@E{g@g;\mfs;
Total 333,020,000 40.12%
At




Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (A

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

1. In Play Limited is 100.0% owned by Mr. Lau Pak Man. Mr. Lau Pak Man
is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by In Play Limited
under the SFO.

2. Mr. Lau Pak Man is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Pak Man is deemed to be interested in the same number
of shares in which Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is deemed to be interested.

3. Wealth Celebration Limited is 100.0% owned by Mr. Cheng Wing
Cheong. Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong is therefore deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Wealth Celebration Limited under the SFO.

4. Kinetic Kingdom Limited is 100.0% owned by Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit. Ms.
Kwan Kit Sum Kit is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Kinetic Kingdom Limited under the SFO.

5. Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is the spouse of Mr. Lau Pak Man. By virtue of

the SFO, Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is deemed to be interested in the same

number of shares in which Mr. Lau Pak Man is deemed to be interested.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 16 April 2015. The register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31
March 2016, the following shareholders, other than those
disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interest in Securities”, had notified the Company
of its interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' FERRNESERDR (F)

INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

Long positions in the shares: RBHFRE
Approximate
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of the
Company
Name of Number {ERNE
substantial shareholder Capacity of shares 2ERTRAN
TERRER 514 RHEE BMYB DL
In Play Limited Beneficial owner 270,000,000 32.53%
EREBA
Wealth Celebration Limited Beneficial owner 270,000,000 32.53%
EmAA
Kinetic Kingdom Limited Beneficial owner 60,000,000 7.23%
BEmAA
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS FEREREER

The percentage of purchases and sales for the financial year
ended 31 March 2016 attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 18.8%
— five largest suppliers combined 64.6%
Sales

— the largest customer 29.9%
— five largest customers combined 70.8%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in securities”
above, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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EEEHRE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company which requires compliance with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of material related party transactions undertaken in
the usual course of business of the Group are set out in note
25 to the financial statements. However, these transactions
were either exempt from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, or did not fall under the
definition of connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available and to
the best belief and knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the public float as required by the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to
the date of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Financial Year
2015/2016 is included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this report on pages 7 to 16 and forms part of this
Directors’ Report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund
prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Save
as the aforesaid, the Group did not participate in any other
pension schemes during the Financial Year 2015/16.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS UNDER

RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 26 June 2015 and 6 January 2016, the Company as
guarantor and In Construction Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as borrower, entered
into facility agreements relating to a HK$80 million general
banking and term loan facilities (the “Facilities 1”) and
HK$10 million revolving term loan facilities (the “Facilities 2")
with licensed banks in Hong Kong as lenders, respectively.
The maturity date of the Facilities 1 and the Facilities 2 are
three years and six months from the date of drawdown
respectively.

Pursuant to the Facilities 1, the Company, as guarantor, has
undertaken to the Lender that (i) Mr. Lau Pak Man, Mr. Cheng
Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit will maintain an
aggregate beneficial shareholding of not less than 50% of
the entire issued share capital of the Company; and (ii) any of
Mr. Lau Pak Man, Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit
Sum Kit will remain as the chairman of the Company.

Pursuant to the Facilities 2, the Company, as the guarantor,
has undertaken to the Lender that Mr. Lau Pak Man and Mr.
Cheng Wing Cheong will together ultimately hold more than
50% of the entire issued share capital of the Company.

A breach of the above undertaking will constitute an event
of default, and the lenders may cancel or suspend the
Facilities and demand repayment of any outstanding amount
under the facility agreement together with interest accrued
thereon.

The above undertaking contains covenants relating to specific
performance of the controlling shareholders of the Company
which was subject to disclosure under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-
appoint KPMG as the auditor of the Company.
By order of the Board

Lau Pak Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2016
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Corporate Governance Report
N ;MsAiﬁﬂ:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed
in achieving a high standard of corporate governance and
leading the Group to attain better results and improve
its corporate image with effective corporate governance
procedures.

Since Listing, the Board is of the opinion that the Company
had adopted, applied and complied with the code provisions
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
except for the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the Code.

According to provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lau Pak
Man is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, responsible
for overall strategic development, project management and
client management of the Group. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in Mr. Lau Pak Man has the benefit of ensuring
consistent and continuous planning and execution of the
Company'’s strategies. The Board considers that the balance
of power and authority, accountability and independent
decision-making under the present arrangement will not be
impaired in light of the diverse background and experience
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, and the
composition of the Board which comprises equal number of
Independent Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors
also provides added independence to the Board. Further,
the Audit Committee composed exclusively of Independent
Non-Executive Directors has free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional
advisers when it considers necessary.
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THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board consists of six Directors including Mr. Lau
Pak Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit as the
Executive Directors and Mr. Leung Chi Kin, Mr. LAM
Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also
known as lao Chi Meng) as the Independent Non-
Executive Directors. Their name and biographical details
are set in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” in this report. The overall
management of the Company’s operation was vested
in the Board.

Save that Mr. Lau Pak Man and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit
are spouses, there are no financial, business, family or
other material relationships among members of the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board has
at all times met the requirements of rules 3.10(1) and
(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors
with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The three Independent Non-Executive Directors
represent half of the Board, the proportion of which
is higher than what is required by Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive
directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one-
third of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the
interest of shareholders.

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, and monitor
the performance of the senior executives. The Directors
have to make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company.

Liability insurance for Directors and senior management
officers of the Company was maintained by the
Company with coverage for any legal liabilities which
may arise in the course of performing their duties.

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

(A)

B

EEg2dm
EEelR A BEFTEAR BREH
TERIBXEE(ZERITRE
) BRELERBROZLIA
FBMIFHITESREFERELEL - M
SHEEEREFBEL - RENE
ERBEEFEERAREEER
SREBEANERE| —f-EFg
BEARANEBELEEE

BRRBEXEERBRLOZERARE
S EEEREMEME - X5 -
RIGHEMEARR

BE—ZT-R"E=A=+—HI#F
B &g —BHHETLETRAUSE
310N Q) EmEABREIREI=
BEIFPTEERELEP—F
BIUFNTEEEABEE 2EXE
Bt i EERERY
HUE e

—ERBUIIENTESHERESS
—XKEAE tHER TR
E310AFTHE - B E - EE
TAZBNIERTERBEESS
EL=ZHz—HKEAH - EELH
B EECREMNEXNERAZE
S2ME AR R IR R Fllas o

EEEE

EZenMBEAREARARRMAEL
BETS - BIEGIELAEMBRE
=% EREERE  ABREELER
BEEREG  WREERSHEITHRAS
BRI c ERAUARA ZFEIE
HEBRRE °

ARAEREEREREEARR
BEEERR  BEEETRERS
RO EREREERERE -



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

iaf 3

(A)

EREE ()

THE BOARD (continued)
Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of Executive Directors
along with other senior executives, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and
direction as adopted by the Board from time to time,
and conducting the day-to-day operations of the
Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet
regularly to review the performance of the businesses
of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources
and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the
delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Group.

Compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct of dealings in securities of the
Company by Directors (the “Model Code”). Upon
specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 March 2016.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors play
a significant role in the Board by virtue of their
independent judgment and their views carry significant
weight in the Board's decision. They bring an
impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategies,
performance and control.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors possess
extensive academic, professional and industry expertise
and management experience and have provided their
professional advice to the Board.

The Board also considers that the Independent Non-
Executive Directors can provide independent advice
on the Company’s business strategies, results and
management so as to safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(continued)

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years commencing from 26
March 2015. None of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors held any other offices in the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the
Company. All Independent Non-Executive Directors
have confirmed their independence to the Company
in accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-
Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
or a letter of appointment with the Company for
a specific term. Such term is subject to his/her re-
election by the Company at an annual general meeting
("AGM") upon retirement. Article 112 of the Articles
provides that any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the members of
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles, at each
AGM of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Cheng
Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit shall retire
from office by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

The members of the Company may, at any general
meetings convened and held in accordance with the
Articles, remove a Director by ordinary resolution at any
time before the expiration of his/her period of office
notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles or
in any agreement between the Company and such
Director and may by ordinary resolution elect another
person in his/her stead.

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

(A)

E 3 16))
BIFHTES ()

BB ENITEFEST - T8
BE-_ZE—RF=ZA=-+/ Bt A
—F - HETMBULIFNTESER
NN A S EAT ] I B A R AR (A
E BT - IR R AR BT R
M EEEZ - 2EBYIERNTE
ZEERB EMAREIIBEAR
NEVERBE 2B - KRR FIR
AEEEBEIIENITEEIABIA
j:o

EECEE EERER

BRAWTEERBYIFNTESES
HBARBAEEERTLRBE AL
HEAT R K ARARF]BIER
RBFRE ([RRBFAE ] &R
KB ®EE - BRARE 112157
B EHEFSRENERES
CTHERERNES  THEEAR
AIERBERAE L BRRZKRE
LEERERET -

RIREIZAAIZE 108 16K - PART
BERRBFAGL HERES
ANB=DZ—2EFAWFESE
HREE(BRUAEEEREZEZ
ER)EARIB=ZFRESER -
R ERETEERILREEBEEE
£ BRELEERBRLLLER
BRBFREG LWERE XEE
REBREAE EEREF -

ARRBRRARIRBERAA G R
NMEITHEMBRRAS LA EER
AR R — R I R E A
Ex MAwmERMARNRKAAR MR
FZREF 2B 2 BZEEE
[RIFTE - WEMA AL BIRETE
BE—BATREEBA -



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

iaf 3

(A)

EREE ()

THE BOARD (continued) (A) EEE (&)
Board Meetings Exgel
The Board meets reqularly to discuss and formulate the EEerfemmid kTR ER
overall strategy as well as the operation and financial REBEREANEERVEERIR -
performance of the Group. Directors may participate BEAHAHESIUETFEBAAR
either in person or through electronic means of RESE o
communications.
The Board has convened four regular meeting during EEeRAFECARMNATEHE
the year. The attendance of the respective Directors to FoREEHREZCCRNRE
the Board Meetings and the AGM are set out below: BEREMDEEHINNOT
Attendance/Number of
meetings held
HERY, BTERRY
Regular
Board Meetings AGM
EHEZESE REBFAS
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Lau Pak Man EllEhets 4/4 n
(Chariman and Chief Executive Officer) (ERRITREEH)

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong BERESLE 4/4 n
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit BRLZT 4/4 17
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYHTES
Mr. Leung Chi Kin PRBEE 4/4 n
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MERLE 4/4 n
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFEEE 4/4 n

(also known as lao Chi Meng)

All Directors received training in the form of seminar
and provision of training materials to ensure that he/
she is fully aware of his/her duties and responsibilities as
a director under applicable rules and requirements. All
Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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(A) THE BOARD (continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Code, all Directors
should provide their training record to the Company.

=3
==

= (&)

EE2 (&)
Exees (@)

*E?F#WJE"J%EE E2REEAAN
NAIRHEIFIIEE - RIBEFR

(A)

According to the training records provided by the etk - RERREHER
Directors, the training attended by them during the NIRRT

reporting period is summarized as follows:

Corporate Governance,
Regulatory Development and

Name of director Trainings on other relevant topics

1 TEER  EERRREMAEEEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lau Pak Man Blaste s v
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong HEELE /
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit BaLRT v/
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Leung Chi Kin PHREE v
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MERELE v
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFEEE v/

(also known as lao Chi Meng)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(a)

(b)

(e)

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and

(a) BEEREEHARFD
SRR K ER

ESC

(b) HHREEBERERE
BABRBEIIRFEEE
TR

() HHREBARARAABRER
B NEBTEEREE

regulatory requirements; FAE

to develop, review and monitor the code (d #&E THLEEERAR
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) EERESFHER EE‘J&
applicable to employees and Directors; and EHRFME)

to review the Company’s compliance with
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the Code and
Corporate Governance Report).
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THE BOARD (continued)
Board Committees

The Board has established three committees
and has delegated various responsibilities to the
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”). All the
Board Committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference
which are available to shareholders on the websites of
both the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on
26 March 2015 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C3 of the Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment and removal of external auditors;
review the financial statements and render advice in
respect of financial reporting as well as oversee internal
control procedures of the Group.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Chi Kin
(being the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Lam Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman
(also known as lao Chi Meng). In compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit
Committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee convened four meetings during
the year with attendance of each member as follows;

EE2 (&)
EREEE ()

%Véﬂaﬁf‘ﬁif mRE
%BZEHMWE@?ZZDT :

Attendance/Number of
meetings held

HERE BITEERH

Mr. Leung Chi Kin (Chairman) RS ()
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MEHESTRE
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFEsESE
(also known as lao Chi Meng)
Remuneration Committee
The Company established the Remuneration

Committee on 26 March 2015 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of our Group; review
performance based remuneration; and ensure none of
our Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members,
being Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao
Chi Meng) (being the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit and Mr. Leung Chi
Kin.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting
during the year with the attendance of each member as
follows:

4/4
4/4
4/4

FHEEE

ARAR-F—HF=AH

—+HE&4%M 82 I
B EMABIM S-SR AIE
B1ERRIMRTE - Al S HBES
cHMEZEENETEREAR
MAEEFEEERARER
RS MBR R EERE
ERMEER  RITRREE
BFH B - ARBERESILE
ETEERFH I -

YFMEZEem=2KBAK
EF&EE(FMEEE
B) BERLEETRBRREER
Ao

FMEZEENAFREET—
QE% %)ﬂi%ﬁﬁ:ﬂﬁﬁﬂ’-

Attendance/Number of
meetings held

HERE BITEERH

Mr. Yau Chi Man (also know as EFSEE (FE)
lao Chi Meng) (Chairman)

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit RO

Mr. Leung Chi Kin RRFER ST

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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(A) THE BOARD (continued) (A) EBE (&)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the
annual remuneration (including bonus) of the members
of the senior management of the Group by band for
the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out below:

FHEZES (F)

RIEFRIZ PRGBS - A
HE-_Z—RF=A=+—HIF
B AEBSAEEABZFEF
B (B 3E7E4L) IS B H a0 T ¢

Number of Senior

Remuneration Band Management
55 B 5 = EREEASHE
Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 & T AT 1
HK$1,000,001 to up to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 77T 2,000,000 7T -
Above HK$2,000,000 2,000,000 T = -
Nomination Committee R=rE éé%

The Company established the Nomination Committee PIN/N —hAFE=HA=+/<H
on 26 March 2015 with written terms of reference ﬁk_ﬂm%i,\ @ WiBR ETRA
in compliance with paragraph A.4 of the Code as set ﬁﬁ‘JrE—rEU AABRRIHRE » &

out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment
of Directors and the management of the Board
succession.

The Nomination Committee consists of 3 members,

EEBESE - REREEENT
x%,\ﬁﬁ'ﬁéf_jE%%m%%é\kﬁ
BENEEEFGNEIEE -

REBEZEEH=RKBAK - I

being Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (being the chairman of T (RBREESER)  BE
the Nomination Committee), Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong EREREFEULAE -

and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi

Meng).

The Nomination Committee convened one meeting T%%é,%@ NRFERIT-RE

during the year with the attendance of each member as
follows:

EREHFRENT
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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BEESS (H)

(A) THE BOARD (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Attendance/Number of
meetings held

HERE T BITEENE
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (Chairman) MERRE (£E) 171
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong HEE B S 1/1
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EF8EE 1/1

(also known as lao Chi Meng)

Board Diversity Policy EZgHEZTILEE
The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the RKAFIEEMNESTEKE L TR
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and F(zZBE])  BREY AEHR
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the HEEEEXEZTILANIRAES
effectiveness of the Board. g2BEMME M2 T8 o

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to the talent, skill,
regional and industry experience, background, gender
and other qualities.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives
to implement the Policy and review such objectives
annually to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy
annually to ensure its continued effectiveness.

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

Financial Reporting
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for

preparing the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2016 in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements
of the Group are published in a timely manner. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company
on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company’s
external auditors on the financial statements of the
Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this report.

External Auditor's Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the remunerations
paid or payable to KPMG in respect of its audit
services and non-audit services are HK$1,050,000
and HK$570,000, respectively. The non-audit services
mainly include the service fee paid to KPMG as the
reporting accountant of the Company in relation to
the Listing and for the review of interim results of the
Group for the six months ended 30 September 2015.
The Audit Committee was satisfied that the non-audit
services in the Financial Year 2015/16 did not affect the
independence of the auditor.
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EREE ()

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publications
and the compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to
conduct an assessment on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal controls of the Group for the
period of 1 October 2014 to 30 September 2015. The
Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group and is satisfied
that the Group has complied with the Code in respect
of internal control from the date of Listing up to the
date of this report. The internal control is reviewed
and assessed on an on-going basis by the Executive
Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at
least once each year by the Board.

Company Secretary

The Company has appointed Mr. Chow Chun To, CPA
who is an employee of the Company as its Company
Secretary. Mr. Chow has confirmed that for the year
under review, he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training. The biography of Mr.
Chow is set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders’ Right

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles that extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for any business
specified in such written requisition.

Subject to the provisions of the Articles, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations,
Shareholders may propose a resolution at general
meetings of the Company by following the “Procedures
for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an extraordinary general meeting and propose
a resolution to be resolved at that extraordinary
general meeting. Please refer to the document titled
“Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings” on the Company’s website for details.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Shareholders’ Right (continued)

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible
for election as a Director at any general meeting unless
notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration
office of the Company. The period for lodgement of the
notices required will commerce no earlier than the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the
Company’s website.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional
documents since the Listing Date. The Articles is
available on the websites of both the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at 26/F, Park Avenue Tower, 5 Moreton Terrace,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (email: info@incon.hk).
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KPMG

Independent Auditor’s Report

BZBERE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of In
Construction Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
In Construction Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages
47 to 107, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2016, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYRBEMHE (&)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2016 and of the Group's financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road,

Central, Hong Kong

24 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
el REMZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &

g

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BABTEHII/R)

NEZAZ+—HIEFE

2016 2015
=B-R"E —T0F
Note $'000 $'000
BEE F Tt
Revenue g 4 497,303 386,719
Direct costs BHERAK (366,458) (272,549)
Gross profit ER 130,845 114,170
Other revenue H b e 5 8,523 1,702
Administrative and other THREEMEERS
operating expenses (27,584) (26,065)
Profit from operations R A 111,784 89,807
Finance costs RhE AR 6(a) (287) (431)
Profit before taxation R AR R 6 111,497 89,376
Income tax FriSHi 7(a) (19,422) (16,723)
Profit and total comprehensive FREFNREZEBALLEE
income for the year 92,075 72,653
Earnings per share BRER GB)
(Hong Kong cents)
Basic and diluted EXR#E 10 11.2 11.4

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividend payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set

out in note 21(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE AR R R

As at 31 March 2016 R=Z—~F=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZB7EHII7R)

2016 2015
—E-XE T—h#F
Note $'000 $'000
B EE Fr Tt
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERFE 11 27,161 438
Finance lease receivables WA ERIE 17(a) 1,201 4,130
Deposits paid for acquisition of HEEME - BERRE
property, plant and equipment TR ZiER - 2,351
......28362 6,919
Current assets REBEE
Gross amounts due from EREFAXHTIEFRIAREE
customers for contract work 15 75,514 100,128
Finance lease receivables el R & EFRIE 17(a) 2,929 2,826
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E Ab EUGRIE 13 104,165 109,600
Cash and bank balances /& MIRTTHE 14(a) 229,592 70,158
.....M2.200 282,712
Current liabilities RBEE
Gross amounts due to customers ENEEAHTIRRNIERE
for contract work 15 1,954 175
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEMERFIE 16 71,055 98,983
Bank overdrafts — secured RITES — BT 18 - 5,032
Bank loan — secured RITER— BT 20 6,453 -
Loans from shareholders fREE K 19 9,000 -
Obligations under finance leases B A S A 17(b) 2,929 2,826
Tax payable FERHIIE 7(0)(i) 13,985 20,704
.....105376 127,720
Net current assets rna&EE®F&E 0 306,824 154,992
Total assets less current liabilities BEERFEBEFE 335,186 161,911




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

FEMBMRRRE (E)
As at 31 March 2016 R—ZE—XF=A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (MA TR )

2016 2015
=B-R"E —T0F
Note $'000 $'000
BEE Fr T
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Loans from shareholders R ERE K 19 - 9,000
Obligations under finance leases A& EAE 17(b) 1,201 4,130
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 7(c)(ii) 2,718 -
S 3919 . 13,130

NET ASSETS BEERE 331,267 148,781

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXE S 21
Share capital & 21(0) 8,300 6,400
Reserves i 322,967 142,381
TOTAL EQUITY RS 331,267 148,781

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors HEZeR _ZE—ENA-+HEBHE

on 24 June 2016 R T 3
Lau Pak Man Cheng Wing Cheong EJREDE e
Director Director FFH FH

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial ~ &52ZF 107 BEMIM T EBAZEMBHREK T
statements. —Zf 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE=—F—"F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAB7EHII7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARRERRES
Share Share Capital  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve profits equity
BRE  ROEE  EXREE  REER B
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Mz Fi 7 i T i

At 1 April 2014 R=B-NERE-A 9,300 - - 193,518 202,818
Changes in equity “E-NEEREY:

for 2015;
Profit and total comprehensive ERETIRE EYHEE

income for the year - - - 72,653 72,653
Dividend declared in respect RENFEERRS

of the current year 21(b)i) - - - (186,000)  (186,000)
Issuance of new shares BEki 21(0)0) 10 - - - 10
Arising from reorganisation REEmES 200 (9,290) 45,242 (35,952) - -
Capitalisation issue BRI BT 21(c)ii) 6,380 52,920 - - 59,300
At 31 March 2015 and R=2-EF=R=+-H

1 April 2015 k-2-1%EME-A 6,400 98,162 (35,952) 80,171 148,781
Changes in equity for 2016: ZE-AEREEEE:
Profit and total comprehensive ERETIRE EYHEE

income for the year - - - 92,075 92,075
Dividend approved in respect RBAFEEHENRE

of the previous years 21(b)ii) - (24,900) - - (24,900)
Issuance of new shares under BEERLREE

the Initial Public Offering (*IP0"), (IBRDREE])

net of issuing expenses BTHRS  Nk

BIRY 21(c)(iv) 1,900 113,411 - - 115,311

At 31 March 2016 R-E-A"E=A=1-H 8,300 186,673 (35,952) 172,246 331,267
The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial 5§ 52ZF 107 EHIMW TR ZZEHEx

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &

g

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BABTEHII/R)

NEZAZ+—HIEFE

2016 2015
—B-X§ —T-hF
Note $'000 $'000
F 3k Fr Tt
Cash generated from operations K& ERE 14(b) 119,856 50,206
Tax paid EAITIE (23,423) (5.616)
Net cash generated from RETBREREFHE
operating activities . 9%,433 . 44,590
Investing activities REEH
Payment for the purchase of HEEWE  BE
property, plant and equipment PELANEN (29,415) (165)
Deposits paid for acquisition of MEEWE  HE
property, plant and equipment BB zEe - (2,351)
Interest received BEUHHE 670 505
Capital element of finance lease EHREEERS 2
rentals received BERTTHE 2,826 2,727
Interest element of finance ERmERERS 2
lease rentals received METE 201 300
Decrease/(increase) in R BIRITIER
restricted bank deposits wA(gn) 22,722 (20,104)
Net cash used in RETZBFARSFE
investing activites (2,996) (19,088)
Financing activities RMEES
Net proceeds from issue of shares — ZE7TR% {7 FT1S RUEF58 115,311 -
Interest paid BEARFLE (86) (131)
Capital element of finance leases ENREEERS
rentals paid BARTER (2,826) (2,932)
Interest element of finance ENRERERS 2
leases rentals paid FEITE (201) (300)
Dividends paid BEfRE (24,900) (30,000)
Proceeds from new bank loan MERITE AT RIE 7,000 -
Repayment of bank loan EBIRTTER (547) -
Net cash generated from/ METHHME(FTA)
(used in) financing activities REFHE 93751 (33,363)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BRERBRESZEEY
and cash equivalents #in,/ CRd) BEE 187,188 (7,861)
Cash and cash equivalents at FINRER
the beginning of the year REZEY (4,895) 2,966
Cash and cash equivalents at FRONAER
the end of the year REZEY 14(a) 182,293 (4,895)

The notes on pages 52 to 107 form part of these financial
statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

In Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged as a contractor in the
foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 29 September 2014
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a reorganisation of the Group (the
“Reorganisation”) which was completed on 16
March 2015 to rationalise the corporate structure in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company
became the holding company of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 31
March 2015 (the “Prospectus”).

The Reorganisation only involved inserting newly
formed entities with no substantive operations as
new holding companies of In Construction Limited
("ICL"), which was the Group’s sole operating entity.
Accordingly, the Reorganisation has been accounted
for using a principle similar to that for a reverse
acquisition as set out in Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 3, Business combinations, with ICL treated as
the acquirer for accounting purposes. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared and presented
as a continuation of the financial statements of ICL
with the assets and liabilities of ICL recognised and
measured at their historical carrying amounts prior to
the Reorganisation.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 16 April 2015 (the “Listing”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note
2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2016 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company:

- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle

- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle

These developments have had no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(g)), unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(g)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Shorter of lease
term and 5 years

- Leasehold
improvements

- Motor vehicles 3/, years
- Plant and machinery 5 years
- Office equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

()

0]

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are
included in property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost
or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(e).
Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in note 2(g). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Leased assets (continued)
(iii) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

(g) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of trade and other
receivables
Trade and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SBARZTTHBXE)

(continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (continued) (9) EERMEGEE)
(i) Impairment of trade and other (i) EZRHEMEWFEZ
receivables (continued) RE (&)

If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is measured as the difference between

MiFEEAEEERE
WIrREEEKN - AR

the asset’s carrying amount and the BEEENEEZREE
present value of estimated future cash BB EENBRER
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s A& (BMER R

original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of trade and other
receivables (continued)
Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors included within trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and
- investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial

position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SBARZTTHBXE)

(continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (continued) (9) EERMEGEE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) HEEREE)
- Calculation of recoverable amount —  FTERWEIEEE
The recoverable amount of an asset AEzAKE S
is the greater of its fair value less FUEQNFE
costs of disposal and value in use. In R B KR R fE
assessing value in use, the estimated REEMREHR 2
future cash flows are discounted to BEaHERLE-
their present value using a pre-tax fERT A EAEE
discount rate that reflects current B 2ERRE
market assessments of the time ARG IR R M
value of money and the risks specific KRR &M =8

to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other

RERM - %8
RERB TS E
I B S 1 BB

assets, the recoverable amount is MEEMZEE
determined for the smallest group ZEB R - mn
of assets that generates cash inflows BEWIEER
independently (i.e. a cash-generating BosE L A
unit). EZBRERA
BI A& EFTE 7]
BUEEBRSR
AZ &/NEFIE
EAReEELS
i) EE e &
2 o
- Recognition of impairment losses —  HEERREEE
An impairment loss is recognised in MEENEE
profit or loss if the carrying amount REELEENZ
of an asset, or the cash-generating BREEBEBAEA
unit to which it belongs, exceeds e e AR
its recoverable amount. Impairment BERERRAES

losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to

BB EL
B WERR 2R (B

reduce the carrying amount of the EEE D ERL
assets in the unit (or group of units) P EERFLZE
on a pro rata basis, except that the iz (kaz BB AL)
carrying value of an asset will not NEEZE®
be reduced below its individual B: BEEZR
fair value less costs of disposal HEATEHRLZE
(if measurable) or value in use (if BN E @R A F
determinable). BRI B AN (i

BEEtE) SE AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction
of an asset or a group of assets, where the
customer is able to specify the major structural
elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 2(p)(i). When
the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised
as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the
reporting period. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,
the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Construction contracts in progress at the end
of the reporting period are recorded at the net
amount of costs incurred plus recognised profit
less recognised losses and progress billings,
and are presented in the statement of financial
position as the “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amounts due to customers for contract
work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress
billings not yet paid by the customer are included
under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
included under “Trade and other payables”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

()]

(k)

U]

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(g)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Except for financial guarantee
liabilities measured in accordance with note 2(o)
(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and in hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Employee benefits

(n)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities and all deferred tax
assets, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Group or the Company has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group or the Company
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SBARZTTHBXE)

(continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued, (o) BRLEMBEER BERR
provisions and contingent liabilities REE
(i) Financial guarantees issued (i) CERHHKER

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

MIBERIEELBETA
(BDEERA) ERS &
ATHBADESER
BARERBERTA
B 18R R B BB A 3R M
SXMBXR AREA
AR E SRIBIAERS (B
HBH

A/ E (e

Where the Group issues a financial EZK;Rﬁqﬁiﬁigg
uarantee, the fair value of the guarantee | ATR RS

; y SWRRE S BN

is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

(i) Financial guarantees issued
(continued)
The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note
2(o)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group under the guarantee, and
(i) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

(ii) Other provisions and contingent
liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of

. . economic benefits is remote.
. E In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(p) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

0]

(i)

Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue from a fixed price contract work
is recognised based on the stage of
completion of the contracts, provided that
the stage of contract completion and the
gross billing value of contracting work
can be measured reliably. The stage of
completion of a contract is established
according to the progress certificate (by
reference to the amount of completed
works confirmed by surveyor) issued by
the customers or the progress payment
application (by reference to the amount of
completed works confirmed by in-house
surveyor) submitted to the customers.

Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included in contract
revenue to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer or the outcome
of which can be estimated reliably by
management and are capable of being
reliably measured.

When the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable
will be recoverable.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (MAZTTHIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(r)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii)  is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

(2)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (MAZTTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)
()
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Related parties (continued)
(continued)

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

().

A person identified in (r)(1)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 SitHERMEET
ESTIMATES
(a) Critical accounting judgements in (a) ERAXEEZEBEEREZ
applying the Group’s accounting ERETHE

policies
In the process of applying the Group's

RERBARNEEZ G5 HE

accounting policies, management has made the - BEBEDIELEATES

following accounting judgements: FIET

(i) Depreciation of property, plant and (i) ¥ -BERRERE
equipment
Property, plant and equipment are WE - BB KRB
depreciated on a straight-line basis over RibEtRIREEE @ &
their estimated useful lives, after taking BEEEREMFAIER
into account the estimated residual value. FRAFERE - A&
The Group reviews the estimated useful EEHERYE  BE
lives of the property, plant and equipment REBmEEtrI A E
regularly in order to determine the amount PR - LA TE (E 1 3 2
of depreciation expense to be recorded FRNEENTERS 2
during any reporting period. The useful # o A[EAFRIDERE
lives are based on the Group’s historical REBBEUEERNBT
experience with similar assets taking into EERETE - WA RTE
account anticipated technological changes. ERRL TR o (HELETE
The depreciation expense for future HETLE B BEEREE) -
periods is adjusted if there are significant Alg ¥R R BRI &
changes from previous estimates. FZ T IATEE -

(i) Impairment of trade receivables (i) FEWEZFERE

The Group evaluates whether there is any
objective evidence that trade receivables
are impaired, and estimates allowances
for doubtful debts as a result of the
inability of the debtors to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates
on the ageing of the trade receivables
balance, credit-worthiness of the customer
and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the debtors were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be
higher than estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 2(h) and 2(p)
(i), revenue and profit recognition on an
uncompleted project is dependent on estimating
the total outcome of the construction contract,
as well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group’s recent experience and the nature of the
construction activities undertaken by the Group,
the Group makes estimates of the point at which
it considers the work is sufficiently advanced such
that the costs to complete and revenue can be
reliably estimated. As a result, until this point is
reached the amounts due from customers for
contract work as disclosed in note 15 will not
include profit which the Group may eventually
realise from the work done to date. In addition,
actual outcomes in terms of total costs or
revenue may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period, which would
affect the revenue and profit recognised in future
years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded
to date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 4 WaHROHER

INFORMATION
Revenue represents revenue from construction W R FERNTEREEES LYW
contracts earned during the year. I
(a) Segment information (a) IBEHR
The chief operating decision-maker regards the FELERRESAEED
Group's business as a single operating segment A —(HE —KZEnE -
and reviews financial statements accordingly. RSl ol g
Also, the Group only engages its business in Gh s REBIREBKLEH
Hong Kong. Therefore, no segment information X% Bt WEZESHH
is presented. BE o
(b) Information about major customers (b) BEEXERFZESR
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% RAEEBWRTIR10% LA
of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: TEENEEWROT
2016 2015
—E-XE —T-AF
$'000 $'000
Fr F7t
Customer A BEFA 148,788 87,430
Customer B %FB - 56,043
Customer C EFC 55,689 53,069
Customer D ®FD 50,088 -
5 OTHER REVENUE 5  Hfttlss
2016 2015
—B-AF T A%
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Bank interest income HRITA S A 670 505
Interest income from W R EEERIE
finance lease receivables 2R BUA 201 300
Sales of scrap materials SHE RER 1,458 830
Rental income from machinery Mz B WA 6,000 -
Others Efth 194 67
8,523 1,702

REZFZERBRAT ZT-FFR .




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 BRBIANEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREADEF DG, (GEA) TS
(crediting): 18 :
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
(a) Finance costs RE R
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEZHE 8 131
Interest on bank loan WITERFE 78 -
Finance charges on obligations ~ BB EAIEZRE
under finance leases & 201 300
287 431
(b) Staff costs (including BIK (B
directors’ remuneration) EEHMH)
Contributions to defined AERFERIKRFT B
contribution retirement plans 843 723
Salaries, wages and e TERHMET
other benefits 24,032 21,309
24,875 22,032
Less: Amount included in W T ATERREEN
construction contracts ot
in progress (16,005) (15,708)
8,870 6,324
() Other items Hihga
Depreciation e 5,043 493
Operating lease charges: WEHEER  HERAE
minimum lease payments ZEIERENR
in respect of leasing of office 737 804
Listing expenses (including R (BETXESE
auditors’ remuneration for W EE < B ARTS <
other services separately ZEREN &)
disclosed below) 4,503 11,318
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z AN &
— audit services — 2B RS 1,050 850
— other services (note) — E AR (PIFE) 532 2,088
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6
(continued)

BRECADERR ()

Note: A non-audit service fee payable to the auditor of $38,000 in M3 MARRBRORBEE T -—RF=A
relation to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main =+ —HULEFERBRXAER MM
Board of the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 March JE 14 1% 2K B B9 3F 4% 2R % & 38,000
2016 had been net-off against the share premium account upon JLE R L& B 5 5 B IR N 0B
the Listing ($522,000 recognised as a prepayment at 31 March (522,000 E R =T —HF=AH
2015). =t+—HERRENTIA)
7 INCOME TAX 7 FiB®
(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (@) #mEeBEmkEMmE2EWZFEE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income WE TS
represents:
2016 2015
—B-RE —ZT—0F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Current tax ZHABLIE
Provision for Hong Kong Profits ~ ARFE&EM S & E
Tax for the year 16,694 16,723
Under-provision in respect BEFEREDTR
of prior years 10 _
16,704 16,723
Deferred tax EEEBE
Origination and reversal of R ERENEERED
temporary difference 2,718 -
19,422 16,723
Notes: B 5E
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman (i) RIEHESEHERRBELHES ([RE

Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group
is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

(ii) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is
calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, taking into account a
reduction of 75% of the tax payable for the year of
assessment 2015-16 subject to a maximum reduction
of $20,000 granted by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Government”)
for each business (2015: a reduction of 75% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2014-15 subject to
a maximum reduction of $20,000 for each business and
was taken into account in calculating the provision for
2015).

(ii)

BERSDHRAURRN - AEEH
EHMRERERABRLEEMNE
AIFT SR ©

ZE-AFEBNEREERES
AfEEHERBEF - 5t RE BT
BeBEFA(BEFDRESEER =
—AEZT - AFRBRTFENEME
MR 75% (§%H,% 20,000 7T ) 1%
216.5% (ZZ—FHF 1 16.5%) T &
(ZZ—1F  REEBR T —NHZE
ZE-RAFRABRFENECGRERE
75% (5% /% 20,00070) * Rat&E =
S -REEBEREEEER)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R AR Y AL (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

7 INCOME TAX (continued) 7 PFiBHE(4E)

(b)  Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) LEAMETENERH
accounting profit before taxation at applicable Sz BRRR A AT & w1 A AR
tax rate: U

2016 2015
—B-XF —ZT-hF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Profit before taxation R 75 A A1) 111,497 89,376
Notional tax on profit before PRA AT A A 2 A1
taxation, calculated at the (IRBEEFIEHE
Hong Kong Profits & 16.5% 18
Tax rate of 16.5% 18,397 14,747
Tax effect of non-deductible AR HUR R 2 897
expenses % 1,012 1,976
Tax effect of non-taxable income A HNHIU A BB 5 522 (2) -
Tax effect of deductible REER AT E 5 25
temporary differences BT E
not recognised 5 20
Statutory tax concession EEBBER - (20)
Under provision in prior years WTFERETR 10 -
Actual income tax expense BEERMEHRZ 19,422 16,723




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

7 INCOME TAX (continued) 7 PSR (E)
() Income tax in the consolidated statement of (0 FREMIBEHKRAERFFIEERIE
financial position represents:

2016 2015
—E-XE —T—AF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
(i)  Current taxation AHEABLIR
Provision for Hong Kong FABBRER
Profits Tax for the year B 16,694 16,723
Provisional Profits Tax paid B SIS (16,754) (10,064)
(60) 6,659
Balance of Hong Kong ERBRTFEERN
Profits Tax payable BBENED AR
relating to prior years 14,045 14,045
Tax payable JER A 13,985 20,704
(ii) Deferred tax liabilities in the statement (i) HMBERRRANELES
of financial position represents: BEEE
The components of deferred tax liabilities RS IRR R ATER

recognised in the statement of financial IR IE A EAEKE D
position and the movements during the REFEREEHINT :
year are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances in
excess of related
depreciation

EHEEITE
ZIERHE
$'000
T
Deferred tax arising from: BB EEKR
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 RZ-ZT—HFWPA—A -
and 1 April 2015 —E-RAF=A=+—H -
r—ZE—RFMNA—AH
Charged to profit or loss AIEERIIBR 2,718
At 31 March 2016 RZE—FRF=A=+—H 2,718
(d)  There were no material unrecognised deferred (d RZZE—ARFR_ZE—HF
tax assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2016 and ZA=+—H8  ¥EEKRK
2015. HWRELERIEEERAE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8 EEHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section RHEEE R AMENIZE 383(1) A
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and R (EHESEEBMER ZHE) R
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information FE2MABRBECEFTHIAOT

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2016
HE-B-AE=R=1-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits scheme
fees in kind Bonuses contributions Total
Fé 28
EZHe  RENAE A BRRGTERR EH
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i Fr Fr
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Lau Pak Man Yaxrs - 1,200 - 18 1,218
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong PRERE - 1,200 - 18 1,218
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit (Note (i) B2 st (MIF (i) - 1,080 - 18 1,098
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
directors
Mr. Leung Chi Kin PHEBLE 144 - - - 144
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis WEERE 144 - - - 144
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman TR
(also known as lao Chi Meng) 144 - - - 144
Total & 432 3,480 - 54 3,966
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

8 DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION 8

(continued)

EEHFM (&)

Year ended 31 March 2015
HE-T-RF=A=+-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind Bonuses contributions Total
o i
S0 REVNZE TEAL BIRFTEIRR Bt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr i i T
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Lau Pak Man Bl - 460 - 9 469
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong BRERE - 460 - 9 469
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit (Note (iii)) B2/ 2+ (B (iii)) - 1,068 - 18 1,086
Independent non-executive ~ B FHITES*
directors*
Mr. Leung Chi Kin PREEE - - - - -
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis ML E - - - - -
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman ETesksE
(also known as lao Chi Meng) - - - - -
Total @5t - 1,988 - 36 2,024
* The independent non-executive directors were appointed on 26 * BURTEEDIN -_Z—HF=A
March 2015. Z+ABEERE-
Notes: B 5E

(ii)

(iii)

No director received any emoluments from the Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year. No director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

The Company did not have any share option scheme for the
purchase of ordinary shares in the Company during the years
ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 29 September 2014.

Ms. Kwan was the assistant project manager of ICL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, before being appointed as
executive director of the Company. Her remuneration disclosed
above includes those for services rendered by her as the assistant
project manager of ICL.

(i)

RERN - BEEEEANEEKEER
e rEARSMARE@ESMAKRE
B2 R SEREE - iEESR
RBE_Z-—R"FR-ZT—HF=A
=+ —BLEFEREXRBRELM
o

RBE-Z-—R"ER-_FT—HF=A
=+ —HIFE  ANARLEL[IE
BARRERRAEARE S -

BRELZETR-_ZE—MEAA=TN
AREZRERTRARMITES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
W& M EE (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

9 EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

(a)

(b)

Emoluments of five highest paid
individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
during the year include three (2015: one) director
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
remaining individuals are as follows:

TfuGEeHFMALRSR
EIEE 2 H

(a)

AEURSEHMA L ZZH

RERAREE A& 5
AT BIEEZFMRM 8 3
BRN=%8F(—T—h%F:
—%) c BRAEBALZHM
R

2016 2015
—E-XRF —ZT—hHF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Salaries, allowances and e RUREYRZE
benefits in kind 1,405 2,147
Discretionary bonuses BYIBTEAL 250 652
Retirement scheme contributions RREF St 36 70
1,691 2,869
The emoluments of the above individuals are FiATH BN TEHE :
within the following bands:
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AEK
Nil to $1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 2 4
Emoluments of senior management (b) EREEEBHHS
Other than the emoluments of the directors and Bz 8 &k o(a) TIRBENES
five highest paid individuals disclosed in notes 8 REMNE=HFMA LT 2BE

and 9(a), the emoluments of the remaining senior
management fell within the following band:

S BT RRERENMES
J& T 588

2016 2015
—EBE-XE —T—AE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A

A
H

Nil to $1,000,000 ,000,0007C




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

11

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 S8RER
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share BRERBRIZARRQ B E=
is based on the profit attributable to equity [1% 8 & 1 & #1) 92,075,000 7T
shareholders of the Company of $92,075,000 (Z=Z — A % :72,653,000
(2015: $72,653,000) and the weighted average 7o) R EARBE ET (RN
of 821,065,574 shares in issue after adjusting for FE21(0)(iv)) B 1T H A% (9 72
the issuance of new shares under the Listing (see 1% 2 B ¥ 17821,065,574 %
note 21(c)(iv)) during the year (2015: weighted IEFEHRER(—E—RF
average of 639,043,836 shares in issue after BT -RFBTHERG (R
adjusting for the issuance of new shares (see note BERE21(0)(i)) BB AL 31T
21(c)(i) and capitalisation issue (see note 21(c) (RBIFE21(0)) A BB 81T
(i) in 2015). 639,043,836 % fn 4 F 35 iR
HOFE -
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREBEF
There were no diluted potential shares in REE-_ZET-—RNER_-F
existence during the years ended 31 March 2016 —RAF=ZR=+—HBLHF
and 2015. Z - EEEEERD -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 Y% BEKRE
Plantand  Leasehold Furniture Motor Office
machinery improvements  and fixtures vehicles  equipment Total
BERKE HENEEE  BARERE RE BAERE @t
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
i T An T T T
Cost: B
At 1 April 2014 RZE-MERA-A 1,008 643 556 1,194 1,476 4877
Additions HE 54 - 17 - 94 165
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-2%ZA=t-B 1 1 ,_0@2_ ________ b fB_ ________ 5 23_ o ],_1?4_ o ],?7_0 _______ 5,(_){2_ i
At 1 April 2015 RZE-RERA-A 1,062 643 573 1,194 1570 5,042
Additions E 31,203 35 8 - 127 31,766
At 31 March 2016 REF-AFZAZT-B 3_2,_2_6?________9?5_________6?7_______j,]?ll_______1,?9_7_______3@,5_30_8__
Accumulated depreciation: 5H7E :
At 1 April 2014 RZE-WENA-A 739 643 552 768 1,409 4111
Charge for the year ERRY 163 - 4 73 53 493
At 31 March 2015 R-F-RFZA=t-B ¢ 9 92_ ________ b £13_ ________ 5 §6_ o ],9451_ o ],46_2 _______ 1}@0_4_ i
At 1 April 2015 R=E-R%NA-A 902 643 556 1,041 1,462 4,604
Charge for the year EfER 4,759 70 2 133 59 5,043
At 31 March 2016 RZF-7FZA=t-B ¢ 5 ,_6_61_ ________ 7 ]3_ ________ 5 ZB_ o 1_124_ o ]?2_1 _______ ?,@{7_ )
Net book value: REFE
At 31 March 2016 RZE-~E=A=1-H 26,604 282 79 20 176 27,161
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RE=A=1-H 160 - 17 153 108 438

REZEZERERAT

=

/

N

s I
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIIR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

11 9% - BmERRXE(E)

Property, plant and equipment held () MEHESETEFENYE K
under finance leases EREE
Certain motor vehicles were held under finance ETAEIARMEHREET
leases and its net book value is analysed as FERBEENEDFES N
follows: mr
2016 2015
—B-XE —T—-0fF
$'000 $'000
Frx Tt
Cost-Capitalised finance leases A — &AL EHAE 699 699
Accumulated depreciation REHE (699) (629)
Net book value BREDFE - 70
Certain machinery were pledged to secure a bank (b) ETHBEEBIERETE
loan, details of which are set out in note 20. MR SESEBEEAN
¥ 20°
Assets leased out under operating (0 7BiELKEHEEHENEE

leases
The group leases out certain machinery under
operating leases. The lease run for a period
of one year and does not include contingent
rentals.

Total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable
as follows:

AEERBLEHELES
THes - BOFHR—F
WABFEAEE -

18 48 7 T L 4 4 £ A
M ) 5 o 8 16 TR A 2
-

2016 2015

—E-RE ZZT—AF

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Within 1 year —F RN 3,000 -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

12

13

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

12 REBARZRE

bilike

o

Proportion of ownership interest

TREEAEERBAR ZFE -
BRIESBHA - PIEROHERRE

it LA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business  paid-up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activity
B RESGIE |
ARER RE£BY ERARE  AREREER i KROAME  IBER
In Construction (BVI) Limited BVI 1 share of US§1 100% 100% - Investment holding
AERaEs  \RIETIRA REER
In Construction Limited Hong Kong 9,300,000 shares 100% - 100%  Construction and engineering
REREERAT E%  9300,000%R( BETR

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

13 BEZRHMEWFE

2016 2015

—E-XE —ZT-hF

$'000 $'000

Fr FT

Trade debtors FEUBR TR 36,158 38,549
Deposits, prepayments and Be - BEREEAMER

other receivables (note (i)) FRIE (P EE ) 18,289 5,563

Retentions receivable (note (ii)) FEWIRE & (PR Gi)) 49,718 65,488

104,165 109,600

Notes: BEE -
(i) Except for an amount of $13,508,000 (2015: $1,644,000) as at (i)

31 March 2016, which is expected to be recovered or recognised

as expense after one year, all of the remaining balances of the

Group are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense

within one year.
(i) Except for an amount of $28,402,000 (2015: $24,593,000) as (i)

at 31 March 2016, which is expected to be recovered after one

year, all of the remaining balances are expected to be recovered

within one year.

BR-_ZT—AF=ZA=Z+—80%
#813,508,000c( = & — A
1,644,000 7T ) 78 B P4 — 4 & W [B] Sl B

RBFSN

AEBEMEHRBERAN

—FRYEHERRFX

BR_ZT—AF=ZA=Z+—80%
#828,402,0000( = & — A
24,593,000 7T) FEEARA —F 12 kB 5h -
B R FETE R —F R E -

REZ SR RERA T
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are
trade debtors, based on the invoice date (net of
allowance for doubtful debts) with the following
ageing analysis at the end of the reporting
period:

13

(a)

Ho WA ()

BRER 20 AT

ETAE S I E M FE WK IR A
BREMET - RRE SRR
= OHE (IR REREE) IR
BT

2016 2015

—RE —E—RF

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Within 1 month —@ARN 33,538 38,499
Over 3 months =@AMNUE 2,620 100
36,158 38,549

Trade debtors are normally due within 14-30
days from the date of billing. Further details
on the Group's credit policy are set out in note
22(a).

Impairment of trade debtors
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see
note 2(g)(i)).

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, none of the
Group’s trade debtors were considered to be
impaired.

(b)

FEWRFGB T AR E BB
14E30RANEH - BEAASE

BEERRZE—THBH
M 22(@a) ©

FEW AR FORLE

B B R SR Y RUE B B
RBERAR RIEAEH
EMREEE AR E
HBERT - REREEEE
JE YR KA (R E2(9)(0))

RZFE—RERZT—AHF
ZA=Z+—H #MEAEH
FEURBR SR AR BRE ©
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired
Receivables which were neither past due nor
impaired related to a range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables which were past due but not
impaired related to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(a) Cash and bank balances comprise:

13 BEZRHMEWIER (F)

() ERERWRN
B 48 380 3 7 B R M ) B LR
REETEIHROEL N
EFHEE -

780 HA (B R (E B R MR TR
ETHRASEHARTEE
REHBILE P AR ER
BEESE EEEREES
% H AR B B
RRREEERITEERE
P RBBE RS 28K
g

14 BERIBITEER
() BeRETEHEE

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—h4F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 182,293 137
Deposits with banks RITIFF 47,299 70,021
Cash and bank balances in the  4REMEKREKRFIRE
consolidated statement of KER1THERR
financial position 229,592 70,158
Less: Restricted bank A IR BRI TAERR
balances (note) (F3E) (47,299) (70,021)
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (5,032)
Cash and cash equivalents in FeRengxkTiRe
the consolidated cash flow RIREEEY
statements 182,293 (4,895)
Note: Restricted bank balances are deposits placed in banks MiEE:  RRHIRITAESRIEFERIRGT

to secure the bank overdraft facilities of the Group (see
note 18) and the issuance of performance bonds (see

ZEFAERAEERITE
S ER (R 18) RELE

note 24).

#iRE (RHIEE24)

REZFZERBRAT ZT-FFR .
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14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 14 BRERIRITHER (E)

(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before (b) BRBIADEFEKERBRE
taxation to cash generated from ¥R ¢
operations:
2016 2015
ZE-RE 14
Note $'000 $'000
(i Fr T
Operating activities BT
Profit before taxation BRI A& A 111,497 89,376
Adjustments for: FANIESEE LS
Bank interest income AT SHA 5 (670) (505)
Interest income from finance EUmERERSMA
lease receivables 5 (201) (300)
Finance costs AR 6(a) 287 431
Depreciation e 6(c) 5,043 493
Changes in working capital: BEELRS
Decrease in trade and B 5 R E R IER >
other receivables 5,435 11,619
Decrease in gross amounts due EhREPENIEHE
from customers for BERL
contract work 24,614 23,744
Decrease in trade and BHREMENE
other payables A (27,928) (70,836)
Increase/(decrease) in gross EREPANIENE
amounts due to customers mEEn/ (R))
for contract work 1,779 (3,816)
Cash generated from REmERE
operations 119,856 50,206
(c) Major non-cash transactions () XEFBEEXRSH

During the year ended 31 March 2015,
dividends of $156,000,000 payable to the then
shareholders of ICL were set off against the
“Amounts due from shareholders”.

In addition, the amounts due to the then
shareholders of ICL, in an aggregate amount of
$59,300,000, were capitalised by the Company

in 2015 (note 21(c)(iii)).

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016

REE-_ZT—HAF=A
—t+—BLEEE EMAR
BEREESEHARRERZEE
156,000,000 7T 72 [ J& Y f% 3=
FRIE | HEEH o

AN R-T—HE - ER
REREEERNRETE (S
#59,300,000 7T ) EA QN FE
AAE (HEFE 21(0)Gii)) °
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15 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 15 EWR ENEFEHXNIRE

CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK I EE
2016 2015
—EB—XREF —ZET—hHF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Gross amounts due from customers EWEFSHNIRRELEE
for contract work
Contract costs incurred plus recognised EE4AHIRAINE HER
profits less recognised losses a AR B R E 1R 808,839 1,396,945
Less: Progress billings received B B R FEMGE B RUE
and receivable (733,325) (1,296,817)
75,514 100,128
Gross amounts due to customers EREFEHNIRRELSE
for contract work
Progress billings received and receivable B WK & U & 7008 51,610 7,074
Less: Contract costs incurred plus W BEEEAOKAINE #R
recognised profits less w MR B iR e
recognised losses (49,656) (6,899)
1,954 175
All gross amounts due from/to customers for contract FBREWK TENEPAHTIERE
work are expected to be recovered/settled within one WEETEHA R — E AR E LTS o
year.
16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 16 BZRHEMENTKIE
2016 2015
—B-R"E —ZT-0F
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Trade creditors FERTRRER 66,966 92,799
Other payables and accruals Hib R RIE R IERTE R 3,413 6,039
Amounts due to shareholders (note) FERT AR B RRIE (P 5E) 676 145
71,055 98,983
Note: The amounts due to shareholders at 31 March 2016 and fix: RZE—RER=-ZZT—RAF=A
2015 were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of =+—8 BABREZFEAEIKT -
repayment. BB REETEEREY -

REZEZERERAT
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16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 16 H At B

Included in trade and other payables are trade
creditors, based on invoice date, with the following

K18 (48)

EU\E%&ﬁ‘ﬁﬂJEHMEE’UZ%JEH
R RIS HIRZBEZAMZER

ageing analysis at the end of the reporting period: m“"T)TZZDT
2016 2015
—nE —hF
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Within 1 month —@AR 34,359 20,839
1 to 2 months —ZWEA 16,318 17,422
2 to 3 months Mz =1 A 7,818 7,796
Over 3 months =AML 8,471 46,742
66,966 92,799

17 FINANCE LEASES

(a) Finance lease receivables

receivables as follows

17 ®ERS

(a) EUREHRERER
At 31 March 2016, the Group had finance lease RZE—RNF=ZA=+—
=RV S @%ﬁm?ﬂ’éﬁﬂﬁﬁ

BRENIA
2016 2015
“E-RE “E-RE
Present value of Present value of
the minimum  Total minimum the minimum ~ Total minimum
lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
SERE RERE &ERE SFERE
ARRE BEE BEEE [3es
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
i i i A
Within 1 year e 299 307 286 3007
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —%% + BRRER 1,201 1,215 2,929 3,027
After 2 years but within 5 years W% + BRAFRA - - 1,201 1215
I W s a0 A
4,130 4,282 6,956 7,269
Less: total unearned finance income 5 : RRTMEEWALH (112) (313)
Present value of lease receivables ~ EWREFTECHE 4,130 6,956

. m In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BA RS R AR Y EE (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZTTHIR)

17 FINANCE LEASES (continued)

(b) Obligations under finance leases
At 31 March 2016, the Group had obligations
under finance leases repayable as follows:

17

2016

ZE-NE

Present value of

the minimum
lease payments

MEHESE (F)
(b) BMEREFRRE

RZE—REFE=ZA=+—
H AXEBE#EBEWTEMNR
BEHERIB 2 APE
2015
“E-RE
Present value of

Total minimum ~ the minimum ~ Total minimum
lease payments  lease payments  lease payments

BEEE RERE FERE FERE
DEET BEE S NHRE fises
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Within 1 year “Fro 2 _,9_2_9 _________ 3 _,q2_7 _________ 2_,8_2_6 _________ 3_Q2_7_ i
After 1 year but within 2 years —Ef  BRFER 1,201 1,215 2,929 3,027
After 2 years but within 5 years W& f + BRAFR - - 1,201 1215
. W WS A0 L
4,130 4,242 6,956 7,269
Less: total future interest expenses 5 : BEAFISHT4H (112) (313)
Present value of lease obligations ~ EAEZH(E 4,130 6,956
18 BANK OVERDRAFTS — SECURED 18 $RITEX -SRI

At 31 March 2015, bank overdrafts were secured and
guaranteed by:

- charge over the fixed deposits placed with banks
amounting to $32,000,000 at 31 March 2015;

- legal charge with assignment of all rental in
relation to three properties held by related
companies, namely Paramount Design &
Construction Limited and Angus Limited at 31
March 2015; and

- unlimited personal guarantees provided by
shareholders of the Company at 31 March 2015.

The pledge of properties and unlimited personal
guarantees provided by shareholders of the Group
were replaced by corporate guarantees of the
Company in June 2015.

R-E—RF=A=+—8 " R77
EX A TR BRI ER

R-ZE—RHF=A=1+—H
4 %8 /32,000,000 TLER 1T E
BRfF s H8ED

RZE—RF=ZA=+—
H EEaEEn A RE
XIRBERAFEEZHAR
AENEFEN=ZEWENEIL
HerEE®e &

ARRBRER-_TE—RHF=
A=+—BREMERH @
AFER o

HRMERAEBERREHROER
HEAERR=ZZE—RAFAHAR
DB Z AEEREA -

REZFZERBRAT ZT-FFR .
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19

20

LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS

The loans from shareholders are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. (2015:
repayable after more than one year from the end of the
reporting period).

BANK LOAN - SECURED

The bank loan was repayable as follows:

19

20

BRERR
REERAEELR - TieREE
TERE - (R —HE: AR
SRR FREE) -

RITER-CEA
FEHRITEFRMNT -

2016 2015

S A

$'000 $'000

Fr Fr

Within 1 year or on demand R—F AR ER 6,453 -

At 31 March 2016, the bank loan was secured by two
set of machineries with an aggregate net book value
of $6,834,000, interest-bearing at 1-month Hong
Kong Inter Bank Offered Rate plus 2.5% per annum,
and repayable by monthly instalments till 23 October
2020. The bank loan agreement contains clauses
which give the bank the right at its sole discretion to
demand immediate repayment at any time irrespective
of whether the group has complied with the covenants
and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

At 31 March 2016, revolving term loan facilities
amounted to $10,000,000 was in place. None of the
facilities were utilised as at 31 March 2016.

All of the Company’s banking facilities are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group's balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants the drawn down
facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 22(b).

R-ZT—RXF=ZA=+—8 " 17
B AR 418 46,834,000 7L K
MEMSZEER  H—EAFER
TRERENEF25%E - I
RADHEEBEE_T-_TF 1A
Zt+=H - RTEXBEREET
RITHEFN MR RIZE 2 ERNE
ZXRAIRER  MIRAEERES
BPRERETEIEIERET -

R-ZT—XFZA=+—8" AR
TFHIEFEIE 510,000,000 7T © 7
—TE-RXE=ZA=1+—0  tEH
FIRITRYE

ARRIFAARITREBRFEEAS
BETEERBL R RmEER
BRITAMEE » 25w % AR EY
EHIBET L 2 ERRHER o AL
BERRH  CREZBEREAR
BREE - AEBEETHERERES
BITRERG FRASEEERER
MENE TR B — SR BE NN
7T 22(b) °
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21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) Movement in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and

21 BARNEE

(a)

REERID 228

AEBRA S EKE D

closing balances of each component of the RHI R BAR A R S BR R0
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the FEEREHER - ARARN
consolidated statement of changes in equity. HR 4] K2 B oK 2 {8 A\ R A 2B A%
Details of the Company’s individual components Bz FHIEHN T
of equity between the beginning and the end of
the period are set out below:
The Company
LI
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium loss Total
RA RPEE ZitER @t
§'000 §'000 §'000 $'000
T T T T
Balance at 29 September 2014 RZZ-BEAAZTHA
(date of incorporation) i (ERRLAS) - - - -
Issuance of new shares (note 21(c)(i) BITATRA (MEE2100) 10 - - 10
Avrising from Reorganisation (note 21(c)il) BEAm & (FizE21(c)i) 10 4524 - 45,252
Capitalisation issue (note 21(c)i)) BT (M 21(c)i) 6,380 52,920 - 59,300
Loss and total comprehensive income ~ HIRERRZENGER
for the period - - (11,668) (11,668)
Balance at 31 March 2015 WZB-EFZA=1-H
28 6,400 98,162 (11,668) 92,894
Balance at 1 April 2015 RIE-LEMA-AZ&EH 6,400 98,162 (11,668) 92,894
Issuance of new shares under the BEERLERE(ER
Initial Public Offering (*IPO"), NRBE] ) BITHRG -
net of issuing expenses (note 21(c)(iv) ~ ABRE/TER (HEE21(v) 1,900 13,411 - 115,311
Dividend approved in respect of the FREFERHENRE
previous years (note 21(b)ii) (BrssE21(0)) - (24,900) - (24,900)
Loss and total comprehensive income  FRERRZENGER
for the year - - (4.219) (4.219)
Balance at 31 March 2016 WZB-AEZA=1-H
k3] 8,300 186,673 (15,887) 179,086

REZFZERBRAT ZT-FFR .
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21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 21 BEXRKGFE(E)
(b) Dividends (b) KE

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, a
dividend of $186,000,000 was declared to
the then shareholders by ICL.

Dividend payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year:

()

(ii)

REE-_ZFT—H&=A
=t+—BHIFE  m8E
THREE RN RT IR
fi% 2 186,000,000 7T ©

BENBEMRFEAR
RARE F A RIR T &Y
FERT AR BIRAE RSB A
HIE.

2016 2015
—B-XRE —T-AF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Final dividend in respect RELIAE RRN B BBRE
of the previous financial BFE 2 REARR R
year, approved and paid BRI BAR 3L
during the year of 3 —T-hF  #)
cents (2015: Nil) per
ordinary share 24,900 -
Dividend payable to equity shareholders of (i) FWBEBRAFEEMEMAK

the Company attributable for the year

DRI A AR

2016 2015
—E-XE —ZT—HF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Final dividend proposed RERE R ERIR AR RS2
after the end of the BRI mAR 3.4 1L
reporting period of (ZZ—F%F : 31)
3.4 cents (2015: 3
cents) per ordinary
share 28,220 24,900
The final dividend proposed after the NS HA KRB R 2 REAIR

end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 21 BEXRKfFHE(E)
(c) Share capital (00 EBxX
The Company
b NG|
2016 2015
ZE-RE —Z-1f%
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
LR £ BGELE 28
§000 $000 $'000 $'000
r r S I
Authorised-ordinary shares EE -8R0 T L ER
of $0.01 each:
At 1 April 2015/29 September 2014 RZE-RFMA-B/
(date of incorporation) “Z-NEAAZTAA
(ARRIBS) 2,000,000,000 20,000 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital BEATRAE 1 (P2 )

(note (ii)) - - 1,962,000,000 19,620

At 31 March 2016/2015 RZZ-—"E/Z%3-1%

=R=+-H 2,000,000,000 20,000 2,000,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: &R CRTRER:
At 1 April 2015/29 September 2014 RZZ-RFmA-8/

(date of incorporation) (note (i) “E-MENAZTAA

(MBI EE) (W) 640,000,000 6,400 1 -
Issuance of new shares (note (i) BITHR (HE () - - 999,999 10
Issuance of new shares upon REREBTHRIR (HEG)

Reorganisation (note (ii)) - - 1,000,000 10
Capitalisation issue (note (ii) BB (i) - - 638,000,000 6,380
Issuance of new shares under the IPO Wﬁ RORRERT

(note (v)) Wik (Wui (iv) 190,000,000 1,900 - -
At 31 March 2016/2015 RIZ-1F/Z5-1F

ZB=1-H 830,000,000 8,300 640,000,000 6,400

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

LB IE B A B KA
FIRZEE - WHEEERD
AREARE FAERRGDE
—E AT BEBREAR T
ZHRBEEmMEHZAERE
HiAL o

REZFZERBRAT ZT-FFR .
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21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 21 BARKf#E (&)
(c) Share capital (continued) (0 KREGE)
Notes: B

@

(i)

(iii)

The Company was incorporated on 29 September
2014 with an authorised share capital of $380,000
divided into 38,000,000 shares of $0.01 each. Upon
incorporation, 1 share was allotted and issued at par
value for cash. On 1 October 2014, 999,999 shares were
further allotted and issued at par value for cash.

On 16 March 2015, pursuant to the written resolutions
of the shareholders of the Company, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from
38,000,000 shares to 2,000,000,000 shares by the
creation of additional 1,962,000,000 shares, ranking
pari passu in all respects with the shares in issue as at the
date of passing of the written resolution.

On the same date, the then shareholders of ICL
transferred to the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
In Construction (BVI) Limited, their entire interest in ICL
at the aggregate consideration of $45,252,000 which
was satisfied by the Company allotting and issuing
1,000,000 new shares.

()

(ii)

RARARARZT—WFE A A
ZHNBEMKS - EERAE
/#5380,0007T * % 438,000,000
BEREE TG - K
MBI 18 - iR (A A N
TTIREAR - LAUREUES - K=
T—MFE+A—B E—HK
TH 8 B 8 % 3% 47999,999 % i
7 ABREIRS -

RZTE—RFEF=A+8"

BRERARABREHZER
HE A A EERE N
1,962,000,000 A% f% 17 & 77 =,
#5547 B AN F 38,000,000 A% %
5 1 /0 % 2,000,000,000 f% A%
D REERZERERBER
ERAFERDETRMHAS
BES::ivi

REH BEREZRFOHR
REAARNEEWE QA I
Construction (BVI) Limited & ;%
HERREEEN D IR -
# {8 /545,252,000 7T ° AR
X A fBc 8 K #171,000,000 A%
RO REE o

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation on 16 March R-TE—RE=ZA+BEHA
2015, the Company became the holding company of the TERkE  ARFIRABAEEH
Group. ZEARAE] ©

On 20 March 2015, the Company, ICL and its then
shareholders entered into a deed of transfer, pursuant
to which the obligations and liabilities under the
amounts due from ICL to its then shareholders, in an
aggregate amount of $59,300,000 were transferred
from ICL to the Company.

On the same date, pursuant to the written resolutions of
the shareholders of the Company, such amounts due to
the then shareholders of ICL, in an aggregate amount of
$59,300,000 were capitalised by the Company allotting
and issuing 638,000,000 new shares, credited as fully
paid, to the shareholders of the Company.

(iii)

RZZE—HE=A=+H" &
AR BEREREERER
WA —THEREZE - BHut -
IRE R R AT H & B AR AR
18 (4 $£59,300,000 7T) 8 R #Y
HEREBCRBEREESE
FARRF]

REA @ RERAQFRENS
ERER - BRHBREREEER
% 5 ) 3B (& $£59,300,000
TT) AR RIAAR AR E AR
% 2 %17 638,000,000 f% 37 B
7 (ABRIIESR) 2 BT
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21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iv)

On 16 April 2015, the Company was successfully listed
on the Stock Exchange following the completion of its
IPO of 160,000,000 shares of $0.01 each issued at a
price of $0.66 per share. On 30 April 2015, upon the
exercise of the over-allotment option, the Company
allotted and issued 30,000,000 shares of $0.01 each
at a price of $0.66 per share. Proceeds of $1,900,000,
representing the par value of the shares issued were
credited to the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds of $113,411,000, after deducting issuing
expenses of $10,089,000, were credited to the share

premium account.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

Share premium

The share premium account is governed by
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and may be applied by the Company
subject to the provisions, if any, of its
memorandum and articles of association in
paying distributions or dividends to equity
shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
the equity shareholders out of the share
premium account unless immediately
following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve was created as a result
of the Reorganisation to rationalise the
Group structure in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange.

21

BARR s (&)

(c)

e Y

Bt : ()

(iv)

RZZ—RFMA+<AH
RIEERR0.667T 2 B8 31T
160,000,000 A% & % [ (£ 0.01
TZBRMDEREERAFREE
% RRABKIRERAT £
Mme RZT—HAFMA=+
B - RT{ERBRERREER - K
R EIRER0.667T 2 BKE
%} % 7730,000,000 f% & A%
HEE0.017T 2 IRH ° FTiE %
181,900,000 7T * HE KB %
TR ZEE AR AKX
RAEZRA - HERFT1S A
113,411,000 7T (A H0BR 21T H
210,089,000 7L1% ) 5T A B 19
B

(d) RENMEEREH

(i)

(ii)

R4 E

R ERERSEHS
RAPERE - ARFR
) 4 28 IR 3R 32 A5 9 K 3K
P BB AT AR R AL AH AR
EEYNDEEUIE
(%) B AR EE
B o

BRIFE RS E ST 0K
B E B RARAR
AT BB R A
HWER - TR
FARRAD 58 (B AR A R A
PRRZN DRSS
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MR EARERBARE
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21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

()

At 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of
the Company's reserves available for distribution
to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands and the Company's
memorandum and articles of association, was
$170,786,000 (2015: $86,494,000). After
the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend of 3.4 cents per
ordinary share (2015: 3 cents), amounting to
$28,220,000 (2015: $24,900,000) (note 21(b)
(iii)). This dividend has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to fund
its construction business, provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Government requires contractors on the
list of approved contractors for public works
(the “List”) to maintain such minimum working
capital as the Government may from time to time
determine (the “Required Minimum Working
Capital”). A subsidiary of the Company is subject
to the Required Minimum Working Capital as the
subsidiary is a contractor on the List. Except for
this, neither the Company nor of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

. E In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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(e)

()

FETDREE
R-ZZE—RFEF=ZA=+—
H: ARARAIHEHSIKFAR
AR ENFEERBE(R
BERASHEESRAAENEARD
RIMAERR R R AHAIETE
/170,786,000 L( —ZE—H
£ 1 86,494,0007T ) W iR
HHRE ESEZERNS
f% @R 34N =T —F
F3)MKREBARE =
28,220,000 (= ZFE—HF :
24,900,000 7T ) ( B 5E21(b)
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
bank deposits and trade and other receivables.
The Group has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with
sound credit ratings and the Group has exposure
limit to any single financial institution. Given
their high credit ratings, management does not
expect any of these financial institutions and
counterparties will fail to meet their obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed as
part of the acceptance procedures for new
construction contracts. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 14-30 days from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

22
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SRR R AEE SRR SR
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AEENEERBREIERS
RITEALE S REAMEK
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has significant concentration of credit risk in a
few customers. In view of their credit standing,
good payment record and long established
relationships with the Group, management
does not consider the Group’s credit risk to be
significant. At 31 March 2016, Nil (2015: 21%)
and 3% (2015: 45%) of the total trade debtors
was due from the Group's largest customer and
the Group's five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 13.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover the
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed
funding lines from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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RBEHER AEBERIHK
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 22 Bi#EREERERIA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL Ry {E (F)

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBELER (H)

Given the amounts due to shareholders and loans
from shareholders at 31 March 2016 and 2015
had no fixed repayment terms (see note 16 and
19), it is not practical to disclose their remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period. Except for these, the following table
details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:

ERR_FTE—RERZF
—RAE=ZA=+—HHWEHN
B% B 3R T8 I BR R B B E
FEEFH(RME16519) -
RBEHRFEEREHRT A
HEHEBTINER - Bt
LASN s TRFRAEE S F
BERBREBERNBTEY
A DERAGHORITR
Bem(BEERAEOTIERT
HOFMBAF WAEZE
BIE R IR & BRI B AR )
MAEBEAHEEREENR
FHEH:

At 31 March 2016

RZB-A¥ZA=1-H

Total
contractual

More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount  cashflow ondemand 2 years 5 years
BERANE 0k BR-F RENL
REE BER REX  EORWE BIRIE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
r r r r r
Bank loan - secured, subject  $R/TEFR-CHER
torepayment in demand  MBERERETIELT
clauses, scheduled REFRER
repayments 6,453 6,886 1,502 1,502 3,882
Trade creditors FERTHRRR 66,966 66,966 66,966 - -
Obligations under finance ~ BEMEAE
leases 4,130 4,242 3,027 1,215 -
71,549 78,094 71,495 2,117 3,882
Adjustments to disclose cash  #REE 7 B
flows on bank loan BABBERTER
- secured based on lender's  —~BEFELRE
right to demand igEEl:
repayment - (433) 4,951 (1,502) (3,882)
77,549 77,661 76,466 1,215 -

REZEZERERAT
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 22
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BHEREEREMIA
L FE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBEZEME (B
At 31 March 2015
RZE-RF=A=+—H
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
BENKITER —ERg, Bh—F MERE
A BN REL ELRWE ESRLEF
$'000 $'000 $000 §'000 $'000
i i SR i i
Bank overdrafts - secured  SRTEY - AR 5,032 5,032 5,032 - -
Trade creditors FERTERR 92,799 92,799 92,799 - -
Obligations under finance ~ BREMEHAIE
leases 6,956 7,269 3,027 3,027 1,215
104,787 105,100 100,858 3,027 1,215
Interest rate risk (0 Fi=mEps
At 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group did not N-_E—REN—_ZE—FF
hold any assets and liabilities which are exposed —A=1+—H '  "EETE
to significant interest risk. BATMEBEEANERRE
NEENEE -
Foreign currency risk (d) SMERE
The Group’s functional currency is Hong Kong REFBODHEEY BBIT -
dollars. At 31 March 2016, the Group's currency EA —ET-RNF=ZA= Jr -
risk is primarily attributable to deposits with C REBEWHEEERERE
banks of $22,612,000 (2015: $23,000,000) Em IEGLM\E@%(U\E%J)

denominated in the Renminbi (“RMB").
Assuming that the RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% at 31 March 2016 and the
changes had been applied to the Group’s
exposure to currency risk for those deposits at
that date, with other variables held constant, the
Group's profit after tax and total equity would
increase/decrease by approximately $944,000
(2015: $960,000).

The exposure to currency risk as referred to
above represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in exchange rate over
the period until next annual reporting date.

HIM{E B R 1T 17 3£ 22,612,000
JL(ZZF—A%F : 23,000,000
JL) e BBV _ZE—XF=A
—t—BAREAERE
5% B EEsE Rz AER

A 7N 5 [ 5% %5 17 5K P T B Y
i??fﬁﬂ C ME M8 REF

g B AREEM BT R S
T Ko 4 25 4B RS 18 00, R
#9944,000L(ZE—RHF :
960,000 7T) ©

EXmAEERRIEERE
ABEET —BEFERS

AMBAT LR A RE
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23 COMMITMENTS

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 22 §#HERRmEERsmI A
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL RAFE (58)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair values measurement (e) AFEFE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial RZE—RERZZT—RHF
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are ZA=+—8  K&EEIZK
not materially different from their fair values as at RN AT ENTRET
31 March 2016 and 2015. BERREERKENATE
B|EARTRE -
23 EiE
(a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March (@ MZE—RF=ZA=+—H
2016 not provided for in the financial statements NN B2 et e R )
were as follows: REBERAFAENT -
2016 2015
—RE —T—hEF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Contracted for [RESES) - 28,240
(b) At 31 March 2016, the Group's total future by RZE-—RF=ZA=+-—

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases were payable as follows:

B AEEEMN T BUEK
EHEBRTRRREREN
RAEEMT

2016 2015
—R"E T FF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Within 1 year —FR 876 912
After 1 year but within 5 years ~ —&FE&ERFER 201 1,077
1,077 1,989
The Group is the lessee in respect of an office and AREBARLHEEETEES

items of office equipment held under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

—BRANERRAETRER
BREAMEA - ¥IBHEBEE
BRF  WEIBIKRRETD
TERIAEEIZESEELN - B
EHRLOBENAES -

REZEZERERAT
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24

25

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2016, the Group had contingent liabilities
in respect of performance bonds to guarantee for
the due and proper performance of the objections
undertaken by the Group’s subsidiary for projects
amounting to $72,225,000 (2015: $82,226,000) in its
ordinary course of business. The performance bonds
are expected to be released in accordance with the
terms of the respective construction contracts.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group entered into the following material

24

25

ZREE
R-ZE—RNFZA=+—8 K&
EEEAEEHBARRE —R
¥BBRERREZEWNTAEE
BEHERNBHREZNXRE
& £72,225000L( =T —HF :
82,226,0007T ) ° & 4 (R 7& T8 B 1%
RIESBES QNG ER -

EXRBABAORS

() BRMBBWEREMITSMEE
R SRR REBR
AN E RIS AT E AR

related party transaction during the year: PR
2016 2015
—B-RF —"T—hF
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Rental expenses paid to a related Bt F—REEEE A R)
company MHESHS 737 804

Note: The directors of the Company are of opinion that the
above transactions were entered into in the normal

course of business.

(b)  Remuneration of key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the directors as
disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid
employees and senior management as disclosed

BfEE FRREERRLERS
Ty H B EBBETRINL ©

by TEEBABNHFH(EE
ENEENEE) RIE8K
B mETR=FHEER R
SAREIEENH RN

in note 9, is as follows: W
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—hF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Short-term employee benefits EHEEET 4,712 2,421
Post-employment benefits BRI 72 46
4,784 2,467

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see note 6(b)).

FOEE A TEINA (R
fizE6(b))
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25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(@

(continued)

The related party transactions in respect of rental
expenses paid to a related company and the
remuneration of directors and chief executive of
the Company constitute connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, these transactions are exempt from
reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of the
remuneration of key management personnel
(other than directors and chief executive) of the
Company did not fall under the definition of
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of the
amounts due to shareholders and loans from
shareholders as set out on notes 16 and 19
respectively constitute connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, these transactions are exempt from
reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

25 EXRBEMAERZ (&)

(b)

(&)

HENTF—EEEARNHE
SHIRARBREERTE
TR B ¥ A 78 A 8 B
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FHHEEBERS - Rl %S5
RHERGET ENRANE
14AZTE TR - DERET
B ERBLERRE ©

HARRTEERBAB(ESR
FMEZBITHABRIN HEE
BB AR ST AE LT
HAIBVVAERENBERS
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26 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

27

FINANCIAL POSITION

26 RNREIEBHZYMBEMRRT

2016 2015
—B-RF —Z-hF
Note $'000 $'000
o= T Fr
Non-current asset FREEE
Investment in subsidiaries RIBARZIRE 12 —* —*
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURPH B A RIFE 115,821 -
Lvsea o
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUYHI B A RIFB - 93,516
Prepayments and other receivables  F& /1< 7008 J H At e U 08 10 2,502
Cash and bank balances B MIRITHES 63,809 -
R 63,819 96,018
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables H it e kE (450) (3,124)
Tax payable FERBITE (104) -
_________ (554) _  (3.124)
Net current assets repeEE¥FE 63,265 92,894
NET ASSETS BEEFE 179,086 92,894
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E 21(a)
Share capital (&N 21(c) 8,300 6,400
Reserves ] 170,786 86,494
TOTAL EQUITY BREE 179,086 92,894
* Represents $8 % 1§87T

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE

REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed

in note 21(b).

27 BRFEHBABRNHREHR
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28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2016

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2016 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group:

28

RBE=ZZ-X~"H5¥=ZA
=t+—-BLEFEEEME
s RAE RIS ET ~ # ]2
AR REN TR E

BEEAMBHRRTIHAY TEe
AEAEEEM —ERIIBE—Z
—RE=ZRA=tT-HIEFERRE
BEEET R AT 22 R B3 B0 5% B
BHERPESR - ZFEFTRHATE
AR T AR AR E AR E

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTESR 2%

B E T HEENR

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
—F sz

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

BB EEERE 15F - [ BEAE L (EETA)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

BEBEEERIE 16 REBEFERE 385 (1K5T4K) -
B AT IR a9 B R AR5 T A

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

EEMBREERNE ST REELE A Kz

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BB BHREEAEIR 2@ T A

HKFRS 16, Leases
ARMBREENE 1698 HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. The Group is therefore unable to disclose
the impact that adopting the amendments and new
standards will have on its financial statements when
such amendments and new standards are adopted.

—E A A B TR A E R F R

1 January 2016
—E—RF—-HA—H
1 January 2016
/\i H E'

_5

1 January 2016
—E—RF—-HA—H
1 January 2018
—E-N\E—-HA—H

1 January 2018
—N\F—HA—H

1 January 2019
—hF—H—H

Zﬁ%‘%@fb?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ’\%}/\ﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
BRZSIERT AR R & -
It AEE B REREE %fﬁ*ﬁfﬁ
{ nT&*ﬁuT’ﬁE”ET }ﬂi { uT&%ﬁ
IR H ISR & -

RERFZERARIF




Financial Summary

MBERHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THII7R)

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is as follows.

BEMENT :

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-HIEE

AEBSOAEMBRFENREREER

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—Z-=f —2-=f —Z-mF —Z-1F ZE-RE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
RESULTS EF
Revenue Yoga 365,909 468,117 381,750 386,719 497,303
Profit before taxation B AR 70,618 95,027 73,136 89,376 111,497
Income tax FIEH (11,773) (15,726) (12,159) (16,723) (19,422)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FREFIRZE
income for the year N =1 58,845 79,301 60,977 72,653 92,075
At 31 March
R=ZA=1+-H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—Z-=f %= —Z-mF —Z-8F ZB-RE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEE 288,223 349,024 405,244 289,631 440,562
Total liabilities BEafE (123,383) (207,183) (202,426) (140,850) (109,295)
Net assets BEFE 164,840 141,841 202,818 148,781 331,267

This report is published in both English and Chinese
languages. Should there be any inconsistency between the

Chinese and English versions, the English version shall prevail.

. In Construction Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016
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